

Veeam Backup for Oracle Linux Virtualization Manager and Red Hat Virtualization

Version 4.1

User Guide

April, 2024

© 2024 Veeam Software.

All rights reserved. All trademarks are the property of their respective owners.

No part of this publication may be reproduced, transmitted, transcribed, stored in a retrieval system, or translated into any language in any form by any means, without written permission from Veeam Software (Veeam). The information contained in this document represents the current view of Veeam on the issue discussed as of the date of publication and is subject to change without notice. Veeam shall not be liable for technical or editorial errors or omissions contained herein. Veeam makes no warranties, express or implied, in this document. Veeam may have patents, patent applications, trademark, copyright, or other intellectual property rights covering the subject matter of this document. All other trademarks mentioned herein are the property of their respective owners. Except as expressly provided in any written license agreement from Veeam, the furnishing of this document does not give you any license to these patents, trademarks, copyrights, or other intellectual property.

NOTE

Read the End User Software License Agreement before using the accompanying software programs. Using any part of the software indicates that you accept the terms of the End User Software License Agreement.

Contents

CONTACTING VEEAM SOF TWARE	6
ABOUT THIS DOCUMENT	
WELCOME TO VEEAM BACKUP FOR ORACLE LINUX VIRTUALIZATION MANAGER AND RED HAT VIRTUALIZATION.	
ARCHITECTURE OVERVIEW	
PLANNING AND PREPARATION	
System Requirements	12
Permissions	13
Ports	14
LICENSING	
DEPLOY MENT	19
Installing oVirt KVM Plug-In	20
Installing oVirt KVM Plug-In in Unattended Mode	22
Upgrading to Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV 4.1	25
Uninstalling oVirt Plug -In	
CONFIGURING BACKUP INFRASTRUCTURE	27
Configuring Backup Repositories	
Connecting Virtualization Manager	
Adding Virtualization Manager to Backup Infrastructure	
Editing Virtualization Manager Properties	
Rescanning Virtualization Manager	
Removing Virtualization Manager	
Managing Backup Appliance	
Deploying New Backup Appliance	40
Connecting Existing Backup Appliance	50
Editing Backup Appliance	59
Rescanning Backup Appliance	61
Removing Backup Appliance	62
Managing Workers	64
Adding Workers	65
Enabling and Disabling Workers	
Editing Workers	73
Updating Workers	74
Removing Workers	75
PERFORMING CONFIGURATION BACKUP AND RESTORE	76
Backing Up Configuration Settings Manually	
Backing Up Configuration Settings Automatically	79

Restoring Configuration Settin	gs81
Step 1. La unch Configura	ation Restore Wizard
Step 2. Choose Backup F	-ile
Step 3. Review Backup I	Details
Step 4. Provide Encrypti	on Password
Step 5. Choose Restore	Options
Step 6. Track Restore Pr	ogress
Step 7. Finish Working w	/ith Wizard88
PERFORMING BACKUP	
How Backup Works	
Backup Chain	
Retention Policy	
Creating Backup Jobs	
Before You Begin	
Step 1. Launch New Bac	kup Job Wizard 100
Step 2. Specify Job Nam	e and Description101
Step 3. Configure Backu	p Source Settings102
Step 4. Specify Backup	ob Settings
Step 5. Define Job Schee	Jule
Step 6. Finish Working v	vith Wizard113
Editing Backup Job Settings	
Starting and Stopping Backup	Jobs
Analyzing Performance Bottler	ne cks
Cloning Backup Jobs	
Enabling and Disabling Backup	Jobs 119
Deleting Backup Jobs	
Creating Active Full Backups	
Creating VeeamZIP Backups	
MANAGING BACKUPS	
Viewing Back up Properties	
Verifying Backups	
Exporting Backups	
Copying Backups	
Copying Backups to Tapes	
Deleting Backups	
PERFORMING RESTORE	
Performing VM Restore	
Step 1. Launch Full VM F	Restore to oVirt KVM Wizard134
Step 2. Select Restore P	oint

Step 4. Specify Target Cluster137
Step 5. Select Storage Domain138
Step 6. Specify VM Name139
Step 7. Configure Network Settings
Step 8. Specify Restore Reason14
Step 9. Finish Working with Wizard142
Performing Disk Restore
Step 1. Launch Virtual Disk Restore Wizard144
Step 2. Select Virtual Machine14
Step 3. Select Restore Point
Step 4. Configure Mapping Settings142
Step 5. Specify Reason for Restore148
Step 6. Finish Working with Wizard149
Performing Instant VM Recovery150
Publishing Disks
Performing File-Level Restore
Performing Application Item Restore153
Exporting Disks
Performing VM Restore to Amazon Web Services156
Performing VM Restore to Microsoft Azure152
Performing VM Restore to Google Cloud158
UPDATING BACKUP APPLIANCE
GETTING TECHNICAL SUPPORT
APPENDIX. DEPRECATED FUNCTIONALITY

Contacting Veeam Software

At Veeam Software we value feedback from our customers. It is important not only to help you quickly with your technical issues, but it is our mission to listen to your input and build products that incorporate your suggestions.

Customer Support

Should you have a technical concern, suggestion or question, visit the Veeam Customer Support Portal to open a case, search our knowledge base, reference documentation, manage your license or obtain the latest product release.

Company Contacts

For the most up-to-date information about company contacts and office locations, visit the Veeam Contacts Webpage.

Online Support

If you have any questions about Veeam products, you can use the following resources:

- Full documentation set: veeam.com/documentation-guides-datasheets.html
- Veeam R&D Forums: forums.veeam.com

About This Document

This guide is designed for IT professionals who plan to protect workloads in Red Hat Virtualization or Oracle Linux KVM virtual environment. The guide includes system requirements, licensing information and step-by-step deployment instructions. It also provides a comprehensive set of features to ensure easy execution of protection and disaster recovery tasks in oVirt KVM environments.

Welcome to Veeam Backup for Oracle Linux Virtualization Manager and Red Hat Virtualization

Veeam Backup for Oracle Linux Virtualization Manager and Red Hat Virtualization (Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV) is a solution developed for protection and disaster recovery tasks for oVirt KVM environments. With Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV, you can perform the following operations:

- Create backups of oVirt VMs and store them in backup repositories.
- Create several instances (copies) of the same backup data in different locations.
- Restore VMs from oVirt VM backups to oVirt KVM environments.
- Restore VMs from oVirt VM backups to Microsoft Azure, Amazon Web Services (AWS) and Google Cloud environments.
- Perform Instant Recovery of oVirt VMs to Nutanix AHV, VMware vSphere and Microsoft Hyper-V environments.
- Restore files and folders of oVirt VM guest OSes.
- Restore oVirt VM disks and attach them to VMs running on oVirt KVM hosts.
- Export disks of backed-up oVirt VMs to VMDK, VHD and VHDX formats.
- Mount disks of backed-up oVirt VMs to any server and access data in the read-only mode.

Architecture Overview

The Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV architecture comprises the following set of components:

- Virtualization manager
- Backup server
- Backup appliance
- oVirt KVM Plug-in
- Backup repositories
- Workers

Virtualization Manager

Virtualization manager is a Linux-based physical or virtual machine that manages oVirt resources such as VMs, hosts, clusters, storage domains and networks. Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV uses the Virtualization manager to access oVirt resources while performing backup and restore operations.

Backup Server

A backup server is a Windows-based physical or virtual machine on which Veeam Backup & Replication is installed. The backup server is the configuration, administration and management core of the backup infrastructure. It coordinates backup and restore operations, controls job scheduling and manages resource allocation.

Backup Appliance

A backup appliance is a Linux-based VM that resides in the cluster. The backup appliance is an architecture component that sits logically between the backup server and other components of the backup infrastructure. While the backup server administers tasks, the backup appliance performs management operations, processes jobs and delivers backup traffic.

oVirt KVM Plug-in

oVirt KVM Plug-in is an architecture component that enables integration between the backup server and the backup appliance. oVirt KVM Plug-in also allows the backup server to deploy and manage the backup appliance and workers.

Backup Repositories

A backup repository is a storage location where Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV stores backups of protected oVirt VMs.

To communicate with backup repositories, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV uses Veeam Data Mover – the service that is responsible for data processing and transfer. By default, Veeam Data Mover runs on the repositories themselves. If a repository cannot host Veeam Data Mover, it starts on a gateway server – a dedicated component that "bridges" the backup server and workers. For more information, see the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Gateway Server.

Workers

A worker is an auxiliary Linux-based VM that resides in the cluster and processes backup workloads when transferring data to and from backup repositories.

The backup appliance comes with a preconfigured embedded worker that can be used in small virtual environments. In large environments, it is recommended to deploy dedicated workers that are distributed among the cluster hosts (nodes) and are automatically launched for the duration of a backup or restore process.



Planning and Preparation

Before you start deploying Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV, check supported virtualization platforms, system requirements, permissions and network ports used for data transmission.

System Requirements

Before you start deploying Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV, make sure the virtual environment and the backup infrastructure components meet the following requirements.

Specification	Requirement
Hypervisor	Kernel-based Virtual Machine (KVM) must be installed on x86 hardware that supports virtualization capabilities.
Virtualization Platform	 Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV is supports with the following virtual environments: Red Hat Virtualization version 4.4 SP1 only (Red Hat Virtualization Manager version 4.5.0 or later) Oracle Linux Virtualization version 4.5.4 or later.
Veeam Software	Veeam Backup & Replication version 12.1 with oVirt KVM Plug-in version 12.4.1.45 (or later) must be deployed on the backup server.
Backup Appliance	 The backup appliance performs management operations and handles data protection tasks. If you deploy Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV using the default configuration, the following compute resources will be allocated to the backup appliance: <i>CPU</i>: 4 vCPU <i>Memory</i>: 4 GB RAM <i>Disk Space</i>: 100 GB for product installation, internal database files and logs With the default configuration, the appliance can handle up to 4 concurrent backup and restore tasks if the embedded worker is enabled. While deploying a new backup appliance or editing settings of an existing one, you can increase the maximum number of concurrent tasks. However, you must allocate 1 vCPU and 1 GB RAM for each additional task. When configuring the maximum number of concurrent tasks, you must also take into account the network traffic throughput in your virtual infrastructure.
Workers	 VMs running as dedicated workers must be allocated the following compute resources for each concurrent task: CPU: 1 vCPU Memory: 1 GB RAM

Permissions

The accounts used to deploy and administer backup infrastructure components must have the following permissions.

Backup Server Windows Account Permissions

The Windows account used to install Veeam Backup & Replication and oVirt KVM Plug-in on the backup server must have the following permissions.

Account	Required Permission
Setup Account	The account used to install Veeam Backup & Replication and oVirt KVM Plug-in must have the Local Administrator permissions on the backup server.
Veeam Backup & Replication User Account	The account used to run Veeam Backup & Replication services must be a <i>LocalSystem</i> account or must have the Local Administrator permissions on the backup server.

Virtualization Manager Permissions

The administrator account that the backup server uses to access the Virtualization manager must have the *SuperUser* privileges. For more information on system permissions, see Red Hat Virtualization documentation or Oracle Linux Virtualization Manager documentation.

Ports

Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV automatically creates firewall rules for the ports required to allow communication between the backup appliance, workers and the backup server.

Backup Appliance

The following table describes network ports that must be open to ensure proper communication of the backup appliance with other backup infrastructure components.

From	То	Protocol	Port	Notes
Backup appliance	Backup server	ТСР	10006	Used to communicate with the Veeam Backup & Replication server.
	Virtualization manager	TCP/HTTPS	443	Used to communicate with the REST API service running on the Virtualization manager.
	Virtualization manager	ТСР	54323	Used to communicate with Virtualization manager (hosted engine).
	KVM host	TCP/HTTPS	443	Used to communicate with the REST API service running on an KVM host.
	KVM host	ТСР	54322	Used to communicate with KVM hosts.
	Workers	ТСР	19000	Used to communicate with workers.
	Veeam backup repository or gateway server	TCP	2500- 3300	Default range of ports used as transmission channels for jobs and restore sessions. For each TCP connection that a job uses, one port from this range is assigned.
	Ubuntu Security and OS Update repository (<i>security.ubuntu.com</i> , <i>archive.ubuntu.com</i>)	TCP/HTTP(S)	80 (443)	Used to get OS security updates.
	.NET Core Update repository	TCP/HTTPS	443	Used to get .NET Core updates.

From	То	Protocol	Port	Notes
	Veeam Updater repository (<i>repository.veeam.com,</i> <i>cloudfront.net</i>)	TCP/HTTPS	443	Used to download backup appliance update packages.
	Nginx repository (<i>nginx.org/packages/, nginx.org/packages/keys/</i>)	TCP/HTTPS	443	Used to download Nginx packages required for backup appliance web console updates.

Workers

The following table describes network ports that must be open to ensure proper communication of workers with other backup infrastructure components.

From	То	Protocol	Port	Notes
Worker	Backup server	ТСР	10006	Used to communicate with the Veeam Backup & Replication server.
	Virtualization manager	TCP/HTTPS	443	Used to communicate with the REST API service running on the Virtualization manager.
	Virtualization manager	ТСР	54323	Used to communicate with Virtualization manager (hosted engine).
	KVM host	TCP/HTTPS	443	Used to communicate with the REST API service running on an KVM host.
	KVM host	ТСР	54322	Used to communicate with KVM hosts.
	Backup appliance	ТСР	19001	Used to communicate with the backup appliance.
	Veeam backup repository or gateway server	ТСР	2500- 3300	Default range of ports used as transmission channels for jobs and restore sessions. For each TCP connection that a job uses, one port from this range is assigned.

From	То	Protocol	Port	Notes
	Ubuntu Security and OS Update repository (<i>security.ubuntu.com</i> , <i>archive.ubuntu.com</i>)	TCP/HTTP(S)	80 (443)	Used to get OS security updates.
	.NET Core Update repository	TCP/HTTPS	443	Used to get .NET Core updates.
	Veeam Updater repository (<i>repository.veeam.com,</i> <i>cloudfront.net</i>)	TCP/HTTPS	443	Used to download backup appliance update packages.
	Nginx repository (<i>nginx.org/packages/, nginx.org/packages/keys/</i>)	TCP/HTTPS	443	Used to download Nginx packages required for backup appliance web console updates.

Backup Server

The following table describes network ports that must be open to ensure proper communication of the backup server with other backup infrastructure components.

From	То	Protocol	Port	Notes
Backup appliance, Veeam Backup & Replication console	Backup server	TCP/HTTPS	8544	Used to communicate with the Platform Service REST API.
Backup server	FLR helper appliance	ТСР	22	Used to connect to the helper appliance during file-level restore.
	Backup server	TCP/HTTPS	6172	Used by the Platform Service to enable communication with the Veeam Backup & Replication database.
	Virtualization manager	TCP/HTTPS	443	Used to communicate with the REST API service running on the Virtualization manager.

From	То	Protocol	Port	Notes
	Virtualization manager	ТСР	54323	Used to communicate with the Virtualization manager (hosted engine).
	Backup appliance	TCP/HTTPS	443	Used by the Platform Service to connect to the backup appliance.

NOTE

For the list of ports used by the backup server to communicate with backup repositories, see the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Used Ports.

Licensing

Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV is licensed by the number of protected oVirt VMs. Each protected oVirt VM consumes one Veeam Universal License instance from the license scope. An oVirt VM is considered protected if it has a restore point created during the past 31 days.

Obtaining New License

You can obtain the following types of licenses for Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV:

• **Evaluation license** is a free license that can be used for product evaluation. The license is valid for 30 days from the moment of the product download.

To obtain this license, request a trial key on the Veeam downloads page as described in the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Obtaining and Renewing License.

• **Subscription license** is a paid license with a limited subscription term. The expiration date of the Subscription license is set to the end of the subscription term. The Subscription license term is normally 1–5 years from the license issue date.

To obtain this license, choose the required subscription term on the Veeam Backup & Replication Pricing page and contact the Veeam Sales Team.

• **Perpetual license** is a paid license without an expiration date. The Perpetual license typically includes one year period of basic support and maintenance that can be extended.

To obtain this license, contact a reseller in your region.

After you obtain a license, install it on the backup server as described in the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Installing License.

Using Existing License

If you already use Veeam Backup & Replication and you have spare Veeam Universal License instances on your backup server, they can be used to protect oVirt VMs. You can check the number of available license instances in the Veeam Backup & Replication console as described in the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Viewing License Information.

If you have a legacy perpetual per-socket license, you must obtain Veeam Universal License instances and merge them with the existing perpetual socket license as described in the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Merging Licenses.

Deployment

To deploy Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV, do the following:

1. Deploy the backup server as described in the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Installing Veeam Backup & Replication.

Alternatively, you can use a backup server that already exists in your backup infrastructure if it meets the Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV system requirements.

- 2. Install oVirt KVM Plug-in on the backup server.
- 3. Perform initial configuration of Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV:
 - a. Configure backup repositories where Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV will store backups of oVirt VMs.
 - b. Add to the backup infrastructure the Virtualization manager that administers oVirt resources you want to protect.
 - c. Deploy a backup appliance that will process backup and restore operations.
 - d. Deploy dedicated workers that will transfer backup traffic.

Installing oVirt KVM Plug-In

The default installation package of Veeam Backup & Replication does not provide features that allow you to protect oVirt resources. To be able to add your Virtualization manager and backup appliance to the backup infrastructure, you must install oVirt KVM Plug-in on the backup server.

NOTE

If you use a remote Veeam Backup & Replication console, you do not need to install oVirt KVM Plug-in on the workstation where the remote Veeam Backup & Replication console is deployed. However, you must install oVirt KVM Plug-in on the backup server.

To install oVirt KVM Plug-in, do the following:

- 1. Log in to the backup server using an account with the local Administrator permissions.
- 2. Download the product installation file KVMPlugin 12.4.1.45.zip from the Veeam downloads page.
- 3. Open the downloaded archive file and launch the KVMPlugin 12.4.1.45.exe installation file.

Before proceeding with installation, the installer will check whether you have Microsoft .NET Core Runtime installed on the backup server. In case the required version is missing, the installer will offer to install it automatically. To do that, click **OK**.

4. At the License Agreement step of the oVirt KVM Plug-in for Veeam Backup & Replication Setup wizard, read and accept both the Veeam license agreement, licensing policy, the 3rd party components and required software license agreement. If you reject the agreements, you will not be able to continue installation.

To read the terms of a license agreement, click View.

🐻 oVirt KVM Plug-In for Veeam Backup	🗃 oVirt KVM Plug-In for Veeam Backup & Replication Setup 🧼 — 🛛 🛛 🗙					
License Agreements Read the license agreements and accept them to proceed.						
Please view, print or save the documents By clicking "I Accept" button, I hereby ag	linked below. ree and consent	to the terms of the foll	owing license	agreements:		
Veeam license agreement	View					
Licensing policy	View					
3rd party components	View					
Required software	View					
		< <u>B</u> ack	<u>A</u> ccept	Cancel		

5. At the Installation Path step of the wizard, you can change the installation directory if necessary.



6. Click Install to begin installation.

🐻 oVirt KVM Plug-In for Veeam Backup & Replication Setup — 🗌 🗙			
記	Completing oVirt KVM Plug-In for Veeam Backup & Replication 12.1 Setup Wizard		
	Setup has finished installing oVirt KVM Plug-In for Veeam Backup & Replication on your computer.		
Veeam	Click Finish to exit the wizard.		
	< Back Next >	Finish	

Installing oVirt KVM Plug-In in Unattended Mode

You can install oVirt KVM Plug-in in the unattended mode using the command line interface. The unattended installation mode does not require user interaction — the installation runs automatically in the background, and you do not have to respond to the installation wizard prompts. You can use the unattended installation mode to automate the oVirt KVM Plug-in installation process in large-scale environments.

To install oVirt KVM Plug-in in the unattended mode, use either of the following options:

- If oVirt KVM Plug-in is a part of Veeam Backup & Replication installation package, follow the instructions provided in the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Installing Veeam Backup & Replication in Unattended Mode.
- If oVirt KVM Plug-in is delivered as a separate.EXE file, follow the instructions provided in this section.

Before You Begin

Before you start unattended installation, do the following:

- 1. Download the KVMPlugin_12.4.1.45.exe file as described in section Installing oVirt KVM Plug-In (steps 1-3).
- 2. Check compatibility of the oVirt KVM Plug-in and Veeam Backup & Replication versions. For more information, see System Requirements.

Installation Command-Line Syntax

Open the command prompt and run the .EXE file using the following parameters:

```
%path% /silent /accepteula /acceptthirdpartylicenses /acceptlicensingpolicy /ac
ceptrequiredsoftware
```

The following command-line parameters are used to run the setup file:

Parameter	Required	Description
%path%	Yes	Specifies a path to the installation .EXE file on the backup server or in a network shared folder.
/silent	Yes	Sets the user interface level to <i>None</i> , which means no user interaction is needed during installation.
/accepteula	Yes	Confirms that you accept the terms of the Veeam license agreement.

Parameter	Required	Description
/acceptthirdpartylicenses	Yes	Confirms that you accept the license agreement for 3rd party components that Veeam incorporates.
/acceptlicensingpolicy	Yes	Confirms that you accept the Veeam licensing policy.
/acceptrequiredsoftware	Yes	Confirms that you accept the license agreements for each required software that Veeam will install.
/uninstall	No	Uninstalls the plug-in.
/repair	No	Replaces missing files and firewall rules.

Examples

The following command installs oVirt KVM Plug-in:

```
KVMPlugin_12.4.1.45.exe /silent /accepteula /acceptthirdpartylicenses /acceptli
censingpolicy /acceptrequiredsoftware
```

The following command repairs oVirt KVM Plug-in:

```
KVMPlugin_12.4.1.45.exe /silent /accepteula /acceptthirdpartylicenses /acceptli
censingpolicy /acceptrequiredsoftware /repair
```

The following command uninstalls oVirt KVM Plug-in:

```
KVMPlugin_12.4.1.45.exe /silent /accepteula /acceptthirdpartylicenses /acceptli censingpolicy /acceptrequiredsoftware /uninstall
```

Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV provides the following status codes to report about the installation result:

Code	Description
0	oVirt KVM Plug-in installation has successfully completed.
1603	oVirt KVM Plug-in installation has failed.
3010	oVirt KVM Plug-in installation has successfully completed. The backup server requires rebooting.

TIP

For detailed logs of the oVirt KVM Plug-in installation, navigate to the Program Data\Veeam\Setup\Temp\ folder on the backup server and view the following files:

- VeeamPluginBootstrap.log
- RHVPluginSetup.log
- RHVPluginUISetup.log
- RHVPluginProxySetup.log

Upgrading to Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV 4.1

You can upgrade Veeam Backup for Red Hat Virtualization from version 2.0, 2a, 3.0, 3a, 3b or 4.0 to Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV version 4.1.

IMPORTANT

To upgrade Veeam Backup for Red Hat Virtualization 1.0, you must first upgrade it to version 2a as described in the Veeam Backup for RHV 2.0 User Guide, section Upgrading to Veeam Backup for RHV 2a.

Before you start the upgrade process, do the following:

- [Applies only to upgrading from version 2.0, 2a, 3.0, 3a or 3b] Download Veeam Backup & Replication version 12.1 from the Veeam downloads page.
- Download the latest oVirt KVM Plug-in version from the Veeam downloads page.
- Plan a maintenance period. Typically, the upgrade process takes up to one hour. Make sure there are no jobs currently running or scheduled to run during this period. Wait for the jobs to complete or disable the jobs manually before you start upgrading Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV.
- Make sure the backup appliance is powered on.
- Back up the configuration database of the backup appliance. For more information, see the following sections:
 - For Veeam Backup for Red Hat Virtualization version 2.0 and 2a, see Backup for Veeam Backup for RHV 2.0 User Guide, section Performing Configuration Backup.
 - For Veeam Backup for Red Hat Virtualization version 3.0 and 3a, see Backup for Veeam Backup for RHV 3.0 User Guide, section Performing Configuration Backup.
 - For Veeam Backup for Red Hat Virtualization version 4.0, see Backup for Veeam Backup for RHV 4.0 User Guide, section Backing Up Configuration Settings Manually.

To upgrade Veeam Backup for Red Hat Virtualization to Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV 4.1, do the following:

1. [Applies only to upgrading from version 2.0, 2a, 3.0, 3a or 3b] Upgrade your Veeam Backup & Replication server to version 12.1 as described in the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Upgrading to Veeam Backup & Replication 12. Then, complete the **Components Update** wizard as described in the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Server Components Upgrade.

Veeam Backup for Red Hat Virtualization will be upgraded to version 4.0.

- 2. Upgrade oVirt KVM Plug-in to version 4.1. To do that, run the installation file and complete the oVirt KVM Plug-in for Veeam Backup & Replication wizard.
- 3. Upgrade the backup appliance to version 4.1. To do that:
 - a. In the Veeam Backup & Replication console, open the **Backup Infrastructure** view.
 - b. Navigate to **Backup Proxies > Out of Date**.
 - c. Select the backup appliance and click **Upgrade Proxy** on the ribbon.
 - d. In the Components Update window, click Apply.

Uninstalling oVirt Plug-In

Before you uninstall oVirt KVM Plug-in, it is recommended to remove all connected backup appliances from the backup infrastructure. If you keep the backup appliances in the backup infrastructure, the following will happen:

- You will be able to see information on backups of VMs and perform data recovery operations using these backups. However, you will not be able to perform entire VM restore to the oVirt KVM environment.
- You will be able to see information on backup jobs. However, you will only be able to remove these jobs from the Veeam Backup & Replication console.

To uninstall oVirt KVM Plug-in, do the following:

- 1. Log in to the backup server using an account with the Local Administrator permissions.
- 2. Open the **Start** menu and click the **Settings** icon.
- 3. In the Settings window, navigate to System > Apps and Features.
- 4. In the program list, select oVirt KVM Plug-in for Veeam Backup & Replication. Then, click Uninstall.
- 5. In the opened window, click **Remove**.

🐻 oVirt KVM Plug-In for Veeam Backup & Replication Setup 🧼 —		\times
Uninstall The components below will be removed from your system.	Ц Г	
Click Remove to uninstall oVirt KVM Plug-In for Veeam Backup & Replication		
Refresh	Exit	

Configuring Backup Infrastructure

To set up the backup infrastructure, you must configure backup repositories that will store oVirt VM backups, connect the Virtualization manager that will allow the backup server to access oVirt KVM resources, and add a backup appliance that will process backup and restore operations. For large deployments, it is recommended that you also deploy workers that will transfer backup traffic.

Configuring Backup Repositories

A backup repository is a storage location where Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV keeps backup files. By default, the backup server performs the role of a backup repository. To keep your backups in another storage location, you can configure the following types of repositories:

- Direct attached storage: Microsoft Windows and Linux virtual and physical machines.
- Network attached storage: CIFS (SMB) shares and NFS shares.
- **Deduplicating storage appliances**: ExaGrid, Quantum DXi, Dell Data Domain, HPE StoreOnce, Fujitsu ETERNUS, Infinidat InfiniGuard.
- **Cloud object storage:** Amazon S3, Amazon S3 Glacier, AWS Snowball Edge, S3 compatible, Google Cloud, Wasabi Cloud Storage, IBM Cloud, Microsoft Azure Blob, Azure Archive Storage and Azure Data Box

To combine repositories of different types in one repository, you can also set up a scale-out backup repository.

For Linux server, Microsoft Windows server, SMB share, ExaGrid, Quantum DXi, Fujitsu ETERNUS and Infinidat InfiniGuard repositories, you can enable the Fast Clone technology that increases the speed of synthetic backup creation and transformation, reduces disk space requirements and decreases the load on storage devices. With this technology, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV references existing data blocks on volumes instead of copying data blocks between files. Data blocks are copied only when files are modified. To learn how to configure a repository to enable this functionality, see the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Fast Clone.

IMPORTANT

Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV does not support storing backups in Veeam Cloud Connect repositories. However, you can use Veeam Cloud Connect repositories for storing copies of backups created with Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV

Connecting Virtualization Manager

The Virtualization manager allows the backup server to access oVirt resources such as VMs, hosts, clusters, storage domains and networks. After you add the Virtualization manager to the backup infrastructure, you will be able to deploy an backup appliance and to manage data protection tasks for oVirt VMs using the Veeam Backup & Replication console.

Adding Virtualization Manager to Backup Infrastructure

To add the Virtualization manager to the backup infrastructure, do the following:

- 1. Launch the New Virtualization Manager wizard.
- 2. Specify the Virtualization manager domain name or IP address.
- 3. Enter credentials to access the Virtualization manager.
- 4. Apply Virtualization manager settings.
- 5. Finish working with the wizard.

Step 1. Launch New Virtualization Manager Wizard

To launch the **New Virtualization Manager** wizard, do the following:

- 1. In the Veeam Backup & Replication console, open the **Backup Infrastructure** view.
- 2. In the inventory pane, select Managed Servers.
- 3. On the ribbon, click Add Server.
- 4. In the Add Server window, select Red Hat Virtualization or Oracle Linux KVM to launch the New Virtualization Manager wizard.

원 Server Tools	rhvbackupsrv.tech.local - Veeam Backup and Replication	– 🗆 ×
∃ - Home Server		?
Add Edit Remove Server Server	Add Server ×	Veeam Al
Backup Infrastructure	Select the type of a server you want to add to your backup infrastructure. All already registered servers can be found under the Managed Servers node on the Backup Infrastructure tab.	Online Assistant
 Backup Proxies Backup Repositories External Repositories 	VMware vSphere Adds VMware private cloud infrastructure servers to the inventory.	
Scale-out Repositories WAN Accelerators Service Providers SureBackup	Microsoft Hyper-V Adds Microsoft private cloud infrastructure servers to the inventory.	
Application Groups	Adds Red Hat Virtualization Lusters to the inventory.	
Microsoft Windows	Cracle Linux KVM Adds Oracle Linux KVM to the inventory.	
A Home	Adds a Microsoft Windows server to the inventory.	
Inventory	Linux Adds a Linux server to the inventory.	
C Backup Infrastructure		
Storage Infrastructure	Veeam cloud-native backup appliance Adds Veeam Backup for AWS. Microsoft Azure or Google Cloud Platform appliance to the inventory.	
Cape Infrastructure		
Files	Cancel	
History		
	» •	
3 servers	Connected to: rhvbackupsrv.tech.local (-8 hours) Build: 12.1.0.2131 Enterprise Plus Edition Evaluation: 291 c	ays remaining

Step 2. Specify Domain Name or IP Address of Virtualization Manager

At the **Name** step of the wizard, do the following:

- 1. In the **DNS name or IP address** field, enter the FQDN or IP address of the Virtualization manager.
- 2. In the **Description** field, provide a description for future reference. The field already contains a default description with information about the user who added the manager, date and time when the manager was added.

New Virtualization Manager		\times
Name Specify DNS name o	r IP address of Virtualization Manager.	
Name	DNS name or IP address:	
Colorial.	pdcqa387ovirt.robofish.local	
Credentials	Description:	
Apply	Oracle Linux Virtualization Manager	
Summary		
		_
	< Previous Next > Finish Cancel	

Step 3. Enter Credentials

At the **Credentials** step of the wizard, specify credentials for an administrator account with the *SuperUser* role that is used to access the Virtualization manager. For more information on oVirt system administrator roles, see Red Hat Virtualization documentation or Oracle Linux Virtualization Manager documentation.

For credentials to be displayed in the **Credentials** list, they must be added to the Credentials Manager as described in the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Standard Accounts. If you have not added the necessary credentials to the Credentials Manager beforehand, you can do this without closing the **New Virtualization Manager** wizard. To add an account, do the following:

- 1. Click Add.
- 2. In the **Credentials** window, do the following:
 - a. In the **Username** field, enter the name of a user account with administrative privileges and the name of the user domain in the following format:

<username>@<local user domain>, for example, admin@internal.

For more information on oVirt user domains, see Red Hat Product Documentation or Oracle Linux Virtualization Manager documentation.

- b. In the **Password** field, enter the password for the account.
- 3. Click OK.

The backup server will connect to the Virtualization manager and check its TLS certificate. If the certificate is not trusted on the backup server, the **Certificate Security Alert Window** will display a warning notifying that secure communication cannot be guaranteed. To allow the backup server to connect to the Virtualization manager using the certificate, click **Continue**.

New Virtualization Mana	ger		×
Credentials Select serve	administrator's crede	ntials.	
Name	Credentials	ct an account with local administrator privileges o	on the Virtualization Manager you are X
Credentials			
Apply	Username	admin@internal	Browse V Add
S	Password	•••••	counts
Summary			
	Descriptio	n:	
	Virtualiza	tion Manager administrator credentials	
		ОК	Cancel
		. Duri	Analy Color
		< Previous	Appiy Finish Cancel

Step 4. Apply Settings

At the **Apply** step of the wizard, wait until the Virtualization manager is added to the backup infrastructure and then click **Next**.



Step 5. Finish Working with Wizard

At the **Summary** step of the wizard, check that the Virtualization manager has been successfully added and click **Finish**.

New Virtualization Manager		×
You can copy the co	onfiguration information below for future reference.	
Name Credentials Apply Summary	Summary: Virtualization Manager pdcqa387ovirt.robofish.local has been successfully registered. Virtualization Manager version: 4.5.4.0 Connection options: User: admin@internal	
	< Previous Next > Finish Cancel	

TIP

After you complete the wizard, it is required that you configure an backup appliance. You can proceed to the **New oVirt KVM Proxy** wizard immediately, or launch the wizard later as described in section Managing Backup Appliance.

Editing Virtualization Manager Properties

To edit properties of the Virtualization manager added to the backup infrastructure, do the following:

- 1. Open the **Backup Infrastructure** view.
- 2. In the inventory pane, select **Managed Servers > oVirt KVM**.
- 3. In the working area, select the Virtualization manager and click **Edit Manager** on the ribbon, or right-click the Virtualization manager and select **Properties**.
- 4. Complete the **Edit Virtualization Manager** wizard as described in section Adding Virtualization Manager to Backup Infrastructure.

Virtualization Manager Tools	rhvbackupsrv.tech.local - Veeam Backup and Replication	– 🗆 ×
∃		(?)
Add Edit Remove Manager Manager Manager Virtualization Manager settings Tools		Veeam Al Online Assistant
Backup Infrastructure	Q. Type in an object name to search for	
Backup Repositories External Repositories External Repositories Scale-out Repositories Scale-out Repositories SureBackup Application Groups Application Groups Implication Groups Impli	Name↓ Type Description Pdcqa387ovirt.robofish.l oVirt KVM Virtualization Manager Pdcqa3189ovirt.robofish.l oVirt KVM Virtualization Manager Pdcqa3189ovirt.robofish.l oVirt KVM Virtualization Manager Properties Properties	
Home Home Karachevel Home Karachevel Home		
1 server selected	Connected to: rhvbackupsrv.tech.local (-9 hours) Build: 12.1.0.2131 Enterprise Plus Edition Evaluatic	on: 298 days remaining
Rescanning Virtualization Manager

Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV retrieves information about the oVirt KVM environment from the Virtualization manager. However, the data synchronization process may take some time to complete. If you make any changes to the oVirt KVM environment and want the Veeam Backup & Replication console to display the changes immediately, you can rescan the Virtualization manager manually.

To rescan the Virtualization manager, do the following:

- 1. Open the **Backup Infrastructure** view.
- 2. In the inventory pane, select Managed Servers > oVirt KVM.
- 3. In the working area, select the Virtualization manager and click **Rescan** on the ribbon, or right-click the Virtualization manager and select **Rescan**.

Virtualization Manager Tools	rhvbackupsrv.tech.local - Veeam Backup and Replication	– 🗆 ×
E + Home Virtualization Manager		?
Add Edit Remove Manager Manager Manager Virtualization Manager settings Tools		Veeam Al Online Assistant
Backup Infrastructure	Q. Type in an object name to search for	
Backup Repositories External Repositories External Repositories Scale-out Repositories WAN Accelerators SureBackup Application Groups Winual Labs GMManaged Servers GMVMare vSphere Center Servers Cente	Name↓ Type Description Pic pdcqa387ovirt.robofish.I oVirt KVM Virtualization Manager Oracle Linux Virtualization Manager Pic pdcqa189ovirt.robofish.I oVirt KVM Virtualization Manager Wirt RVM Virtualization Manager Properties	
Home Bill Inventory Backup Infrastructure		
Tape Infrastructure		
Files		
History		
1 server selected	Connected to: rhvbackupsrv.tech.local (-9 hours) Build: 12.1.0.2131 Enterprise Plus Edition Evalue	ation: 298 days remaining

Removing Virtualization Manager

If you do not want to protect resources managed by the connected Virtualization manager anymore, you can remove it from the backup infrastructure.

IMPORTANT

Before you remove the Virtualization manager, you must remove the backup appliance that processes protection jobs for the oVirt resources managed by the Virtualization manager.

To remove the Virtualization manager from the backup infrastructure:

- 1. Open the **Backup Infrastructure** view.
- 2. In the inventory pane, select Managed Servers > oVirt KVM.
- 3. In the working area, select the Virtualization manager and click **Remove Manager** on the ribbon, or rightclick the Virtualization manager and select **Remove**.

Virtualization Manager Tools	rhvbackupsrv.tech.local - Veeam Backup and Replication	– 🗆 ×
∃		?
Add Edit Remove Rescan Manager Manager Manager Virtualization Manager settings Tools		Veeam Al Online Assistant
Backup Infrastructure	Q. Type in an object name to search for	
Backup Repositories External Repositories Scale-out Repositories WAN Accelerators Service Providers Service Providers Service Record Application Groups Wirtual Labs Imaged Servers Imaged Servers	Name ↓ Type Description Pdcqa387ovirt.robofish.l oVirt KVM Virtualization Manager Oracle Linux Virtualization Manager Pdcqa189ovirt.robofish.l oVirt KVM Virtualization Manager Properties	
Home		
Backup Infrastructure		
Storage Infrastructure		
Tape Infrastructure		
Files		
History		
1 server selected	Connected to: rhvbackupsrv.tech.local (-9 hours) Build: 12.1.0.2131 Enterprise Plus Edition Evaluatio	n: 298 days remaining

Managing Backup Appliance

To be able to back up VMs residing on hosts that are managed by the Virtualization manager, you must add to the backup infrastructure an backup appliance that will process backup jobs and deliver backup traffic to backup repositories.

To add an backup appliance, you can either deploy a new backup appliance or connect an existing one. Note that you can add only one backup appliance for each Virtualization manager.

Deploying New Backup Appliance

To deploy an backup appliance and to add it to the backup infrastructure, do the following:

- 1. Launch the New oVirt KVM Proxy wizard.
- 2. Select the deployment mode.
- 3. Specify appliance VM configuration.
- 4. Specify network settings.
- 5. Specify credentials for the appliance account.
- 6. Grant permissions to the appliance.
- 7. Apply appliance settings.
- 8. Finish working with wizard.

Step 1. Launch New oVirt KVM Proxy Wizard

To launch the New oVirt KVM Proxy wizard, do the following:

- 1. In the Veeam Backup & Replication console, open the **Backup Infrastructure** view.
- 2. In the inventory pane, select **Backup Proxies**.
- 3. On the ribbon, select Add Proxy.
- 4. Choose the **Red Hat Virtualization** or **Oracle Linux KVM** platform and select the option to deploy a backup appliance.



Step 2. Select Deployment Mode

At the **Deployment Mode** step of the wizard, select the **Deploy a new proxy** option.

New oVirt KVM Proxy	×
Choose whether you	u want to deploy a new proxy, or use an existing one.
Deployment Mode Virtual Machine Networks Credentials Access Permissions Apply Summary	 Deploy a new proxy Deploy and configure a new backup proxy. Connect to an existing proxy Register an existing backup proxy.
	< Previous Next > Finish Cancel

Step 3. Specify VM Configuration

At the Virtual Machine step of the wizard, do the following:

1. Click **Choose** next to the **Cluster** field, and specify a cluster where the backup appliance will be deployed in the **Select Cluster** window.

For a cluster to be displayed in the list of the available clusters, it must be added to the virtual environment as described in Red Hat Virtualization documentation or Oracle Linux Virtualization Manager documentation.

- 2. In the Name field, specify a name for the backup appliance.
- 3. Click **Choose** next to the **Storage Domain** field, and specify a storage domain where backup appliance system files will be stored in the **Select Storage Domain** window.

For a domain to be displayed in the list of the available domains, it must be configured in the virtual environment as described in Red Hat Virtualization documentation or Oracle Linux Virtualization Manager documentation.

- 4. In the **Proxy description** field, provide a description for future reference. The field already contains a default description with information about the user who added the appliance, date and time when the appliance was added.
- 5. In the **Max concurrent tasks** field, specify the number of tasks that the embedded worker will be able to handle in parallel. If this value is exceeded, the embedded worker will not start a new task until one of the currently running tasks finishes.

The default number of concurrent tasks is set to 4. When you change this value, the wizard automatically adjusts the amount of resources that will be allocated to the VM running as the backup appliance. If you want to specify the amount of resources manually, click **Advanced**. In the advanced settings, you can also enable warnings that will be added to backup job sessions when CPU or RAM consumption breaks the thresholds you specify.

New oVirt KVM Proxy		×
Virtual Machine Configure virtual ma	achine for oVirt KVM backup proxy placement.	
Deployment Mode	Cluster:	Choose
Virtual Machine	Name:	Choosen
Networks	backup-appliance-oracle	
Credentials	Storage Domain:	
	hosted_storage	Choose
Access Permissions	Proxy description:	Advanced
Apply	Orcale oVirt KVM backup appliance	Auvanceu
Summary		Number of vCPU cores: 4
,	Max concurrent tasks:	Memory size (GB):
	4 🗘	✓ Warn me when free CPU is below 5 🗘 %
		✓ Warn me when free RAM is below 5 0%
	Advanced proxy settings include vCPU and mem	OK Cancel
	< Prev	ious Next > Finish Cancel

Step 4. Specify Network Settings

At the **Networks** step of the wizard, do the following:

1. Click **Browse** to select a network adapter to which the backup appliance will be connected.

For a network to be displayed in the list of the available networks, it must be configured in the virtual environment as described in Red Hat Virtualization documentation or Oracle Linux Virtualization Manager documentation.

2. In the **Hostname** field, specify a hostname (without domain name) that will be assigned to the backup appliance.

The maximum length of the hostname is 64 characters. The hyphen-minus character (-) is supported, but you cannot use it as the first or the last character of the name.

3. If DHCP is enabled for the selected network adapter, the IP address and DNS settings of the backup appliance can be obtained automatically.

If DHCP is disabled for the selected network adapter, or you want to specify an IP address and configure DNS settings manually, click **Configure** and do the following in the **Network settings** window:

- To specify an IP address, select the **Use the following IP address** option and enter the backup appliance IP address, subnet mask and default gateway.
- To configure DNS settings, select the Use the following DNS server address option and enter the IP addresses of the preferred and alternate DNS servers.
- 4. To check for available package updates for the backup appliance and workers, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV automatically connects to Veeam repositories over the internet. If the backup appliance and workers are not connected to the internet, you can instruct Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV to use an HTTP proxy that will provide access to the required resources. To specify HTTP proxy settings, click **Configure** and do the following in the **Network settings** window:
 - a. Navigate to the HTTP proxy tab.
 - b. Select the Use the following internet proxy settings check box.
 - c. In the **Host** field, enter the IP address or FQDN of the web proxy.
 - d. In the **Port** field, enter the port used on the web proxy for HTTP or HTTPS connections.
 - e. [Applies only if the HTTP proxy requires authentication] Select the **Use authentication** check box and enter credentials of the account configured on the HTTP proxy to access the internet.
- 5. To enable SSH access for the purposes of manual management and troubleshooting, select the **Enable SSH server** check box.

You must also select this check box if you want to use the backup appliance as a gateway server that will forward oVirt VM backups to an object storage repository and will process protection tasks related to all backups stored in that repository.

6. If the backup appliance and workers do not have access to the internet and no HTTP proxy is used, clear the **Obtain updates** check box to disable automatic updates. This will help eliminate update failures and session warnings.

New oVirt KVM Proxy		×
Networks Specify network set	tings for oVirt KVM backup proxy.	
Deployment Mode Virtual Machine	Network: ovirtmgmt Specify network this backup proxy will be connected to.	Browse
Networks Credentials Access Permissions Apply Summary	Hostname: backup-appliance-oracle IP address: Obtain automatically DNS server: Obtain automatically ✓ Enable SSH server ① ✓ Obtain updates ①	Configure
	< Previous Next > Finish	Cancel

Step 5. Specify Credentials

At the **Credentials** step of the wizard, select credentials for an account that will be created to access the backup appliance.

IMPORTANT

Do not select Active Directory accounts - the backup appliance does not support LDAP integration.

For credentials to be displayed in the **Credentials** list, they must be added to the Credentials Manager as described in the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Standard Accounts. If you have not added the necessary credentials to the Credentials Manager beforehand, you can do this without closing the **New oVirt KVM Proxy** wizard. To add credentials, do the following:

- 1. Click Add.
- 2. In the Credentials window, specify a user name and password for the account.

The user name must start with a lowercase Latin letter and must not match Linux system user names (such as *root, daemon*). The name can contain only lowercase Latin letters, numeric characters, underscores and dashes. The maximum length of the name is 32 characters.

3. Click OK.

New oVirt KVM Proxy	×
Credentials Specify prox	y credentials.
Deployment Mode	Credentials Specify an account that will be automatically created on the proxy during deployment and will eate a new one.
Virtual Machine Networks	Username: administrator Browse V Add
Credentials	Password:
Access Permissions	Description: Oracle oVirt KVM backup appliance administrator credentials
Apply	
Summary	
	OK Cancel
	< Previous Next > Finish Cancel

Step 6. Grant Permissions

At the **Access Permissions** step of the wizard, do the following:

- Select the **Allow access to all backup repositories** option if you want the backup appliance to have access to all backup repositories added to the backup infrastructure.
- Select the **Allow access to the following backup repositories** option if you want the backup appliance to have access to specific backup repositories only.

If you select the **Allow access to the following backup repositories** option, you must also specify backup repositories to which the backup appliance will have access. For a backup repository to be displayed in the **Repository** list, it must be added to the backup infrastructure.

New oVirt KVM Proxy		×
Access Permissions Specify the backup r	epositories this oVirt KVM proxy is allowed to access.	
Deployment Mode Virtual Machine	 Allow access to all backup repositories Allow access to the following backup repositories 	
Networks	Repository Default Backup Repository	Select All Clear All
Access Permissions Apply Summary		
	< Previous Apply Finish	Cancel

Step 7. Apply Settings

At the **Apply** step of the wizard, wait for the backup appliance to be added to the backup infrastructure and then click **Next**.

New oVirt KVM Proxy		×
Apply Please wait while req	uired operations are being performed. This may take a few minutes	
Deployment Mode	Message Duration	
Virtual Machine	 Creating Disk Uploading VM image files 	^
Networks Credentials	 Attaching disks to VM Configuring backup appliance VM network settings 	
Access Permissions	 Starting backup appliance VM Getting backup appliance IP 	
Apply	Applying backup appliance configuration	
Summary	 Discovering objects on cluster Registering backup server SSH enabled Notifications settings have been updated Worker settings have been updated Email notification settings have been updated HTTP proxy settings have been updated 	~
	< Previous Next > Finish Car	ncel

Step 8. Finish Working with Wizard

At the **Summary** step of the wizard, review summary information and click **Finish**.

New oVirt KVM Proxy	×
Summary You can copy the confi	guration information bellow for future reference.
Deployment Mode Virtual Machine Networks Credentials Access Permissions Apply Summary	Summary: oVirt KVM backup proxy has been created and configured successfully Virtualization Manager: pdcqa387ovirt.robofish.local Virtual machine: backup-appliance-oracle Appliance version: 4.0.1.108 Network options: Hostname: backup-appliance-oracle Network adapter: ovirtmgmt IP Address: Obtain automatically DNS server: Obtain automatically Access permissions: All repositories
	< Previous Next > Finish Cancel

Connecting Existing Backup Appliance

If you have an backup appliance that has already been deployed but was removed from the backup infrastructure, you can connect it to the backup server. You may also want to connect an existing backup appliance in the following situations:

- To upgrade an backup appliance from version 2.0, 2a, 3.0. 3a, 3b or 4.0 to 4.1.
- To connect an backup appliance that was previously connected to another backup server.

To add an existing backup appliance to the backup infrastructure, do the following:

- 1. Launch the New oVirt KVM Proxy wizard.
- 2. Select the deployment mode.
- 3. Specify appliance VM configuration.
- 4. Check network settings.
- 5. Enter credentials for the appliance account.
- 6. Grant permissions to the appliance.
- 7. Apply appliance settings.
- 8. Finish working with wizard.

After you connect the backup appliance, the backup server will retrieve information about all backup jobs the appliance has ever processed. If the backup server configuration database contains records about oVirt VM backups and if the backup files are still available in repositories, you can use them to restore entire VMs and VM disks.

Step 1. Launch New oVirt KVM Proxy Wizard

To launch the **New oVirt Proxy** wizard, do the following:

- 1. In the Veeam Backup & Replication console, open the **Backup Infrastructure** view.
- 2. In the inventory pane, select **Backup Proxies**.
- 3. On the ribbon, select Add Proxy.
- 4. On the ribbon, select Add Proxy.
- 5. Choose the **Red Hat Virtualization** or **Oracle Virtualization** platform and select the option to deploy a backup appliance.



Step 2. Select Deployment Mode

At the **Deployment Mode** step, select the **Connect to an existing proxy** option.

New oVirt KVM Proxy	×
Choose whether you	u want to deploy a new proxy, or use an existing one.
Deployment Mode Virtual Machine Networks Credentials Access Permissions Apply Summary	 Deploy a new proxy Deploy and configure a new backup proxy. Connect to an existing proxy Register an existing backup proxy.
	< Previous Next > Finish Cancel

Step 3. Specify VM Configuration

At the Virtual Machine step of the wizard, do the following:

1. Click **Choose** next to the **Cluster** field, and specify the cluster where the backup appliance is deployed in the **Select Cluster** window.

For a cluster to be displayed in the list of the available clusters, it must be added to the virtual environment as described in Red Hat Virtualization documentation or Oracle Linux Virtualization Manager documentation.

2. Click **Choose** next to the **Name** field, and specify the VM running as the backup appliance in the **Select Virtual Machine** window.

NOTE

You cannot change the storage domain - it is automatically populated when you select the VM.

- 3. In the **Proxy description** field, provide a description for future reference. The field already contains a default description with information about the user who added the appliance, date and time when the appliance was added.
- 4. In the **Max concurrent tasks** field, specify the number of tasks that the embedded worker will be able to handle in parallel. If this value is exceeded, the embedded worker will not start a new task until one of the currently running tasks finishes.

The default number of concurrent tasks is set to 4. When you change this value, the wizard automatically adjusts the amount of resources that will be allocated to the VM running as the backup appliance. If you want to specify the amount of resources manually, click **Advanced**. In the advanced settings, you can also enable warnings that will be added to backup job sessions when CPU or RAM consumption breaks the thresholds you specify.

New oVirt KVM Proxy			×
Virtual Machine Select the existing o	Virt KVM backup proxy virtual machine.		
Deployment Mode	Cluster: Default		Choose
Virtual Machine	Name:		
Networks	backup-appliance-rhv		Choose
Credentials	Storage Domain: hosted_storage		
Access Permissions	Proxy description:		
Apply	RHV oVirt KVM backup appliance	Advanced	×
Summary		Number of vCPU cores:	4 🗘
	Max concurrent tasks:	Memory size (GB):	4 🗘
		✓ Warn me when free CPU is below	5 🗘 %
		✓ Warn me when free RAM is below	5 🗘 %
	Advanced proxy settings include vCPU and mer	ОК	Cancel
	< Pre	vious Next > Finish	Cancel

Step 4. Check Network Settings

At the **Networks** step of the wizard, do the following:

1. Review backup appliance network settings.

You will be able to change the network settings after you connect the appliance to the backup infrastructure.

2. To enable SSH access for the purposes of manual management and troubleshooting, select the **Enable SSH server** check box.

You must also select the check box if you want to use the backup appliance as a gateway server that will forward oVirt VM backups to an object storage repository and will process protection tasks related to all backups stored in that repository.

3. If the backup appliance and workers do not have access to the internet and no web proxy is used, clear the **Obtain updates** check box to disable automatic updates. This will help eliminate update failures and session warnings.

New oVirt KVM Proxy		×
Networks Specify network setti	ngs for oVirt KVM backup proxy.	
Deployment Mode	Network: ovirtmgmt	
Virtual Machine	Specify network this backup proxy will be connected to.	
Networks		
Credentials	Hostname: backup-appliance-rhv	
	IP address: Obtain automatically	
Access Permissions	DNS server: Obtain automatically	
Apply		
Summary	✓ Enable SSH server	
	✓ Obtain updates	
	< Previous Next > Finish Cancel	

Step 5. Enter Credentials

At the **Credentials** step of the wizard, select credentials for the account that you are used to access the backup appliance.

For credentials to be displayed in the **Credentials** list, they must be added to the Credentials Manager as described in the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Standard Accounts. If you have not added the necessary credentials to the Credentials Manager beforehand, you can do this without closing the **New oVirt KVM Proxy** wizard. To add credentials, do the following:

- 1. Click Add.
- 2. In the **Credentials** window, specify a user name and password for the account.
- 3. Click OK.

New oVirt KVM Proxy		\times
Credentials Select serve	; r administrator's credentials.	
Deployment Mode	Credentials	
Virtual Machine Networks	Username: administrator Browse V Add	
Credentials	Password:	
Access Permissions	Description: RHV backup appliance administrator credentials	
Apply		
Summary		
	OK Cancel	
	< Previous Next > Finish Cancel	

Step 6. Grant Permissions

At the **Access Permissions** step of the wizard, do the following:

- Select the **Allow access to all backup repositories** option if you want the backup appliance to have access to all backup repositories added to the backup infrastructure.
- Select the **Allow access to the following backup repositories** option if you want the backup appliance to have access to specific backup repositories only.

If you select the **Allow access to the following backup repositories** option, you must also specify backup repositories to which the backup appliance will have access. For a backup repository to be displayed in the **Repository** list, it must be added to the backup infrastructure.

New oVirt KVM Proxy		×
Access Permissions Specify the backup r	epositories this oVirt KVM proxy is allowed to access.	
Deployment Mode Virtual Machine	 Allow access to all backup repositories Allow access to the following backup repositories 	
Networks Credentials	Repository Default Backup Repository	Select All Clear All
Access Permissions		
Summary		
	< Previous Apply Finish	Cancel

Step 7. Apply Settings

At the **Apply** step of the wizard, wait for the backup appliance to be added to the backup infrastructure and then click **Next**.



Step 8. Finish Working with Wizard

At the **Summary** step of the wizard, review summary information and click **Finish**.

New oVirt KVM Proxy		\times
Summary You can copy the cont	iguration information bellow for future reference.	
Deployment Mode Virtual Machine Networks Credentials Access Permissions Apply Summary	Summary: Proxy has been registered successfully. Virtualization Manager: pdcqa189ovirt.robofish.local Virtual machine: backup-appliance-rhv Appliance version: 4.0.1.108 Network options: Hostname: backup-appliance-rhv Network adapter: ovirtmgmt IP Address: 172.25.16.236 DNS server: 172.25.16.41 Access permissions: All repositories	
	< Previous Next > Finish Cancel	

Editing Backup Appliance

You can edit settings of the backup appliance that were specified while adding the appliance to the backup infrastructure.

To edit backup appliance settings, do the following:

- 1. Open the **Backup Infrastructure** view.
- 2. In the inventory pane, select **Backup Proxies**.
- 3. In the working area, select the backup appliance and click **Edit Proxy** on the ribbon, or right-click the backup appliance and select **Properties**.
- 4. Complete the **Edit oVirt KVM Proxy** wizard:
 - a. To provide a new description for the backup appliance and change the number of tasks that the embedded worker is able to handle in parallel, follow the instructions provided in section Connecting Existing Backup Appliance (step 3).
 - b. To manage SSH access to the appliance, to enable or disable worker updates, to change the backup appliance network settings, or to configure an HTTP proxy for accessing Veeam update repositories, follow the instructions provided in section Deploying New Backup Appliance (step 4).
 - c. To change credentials that are used to access the backup appliance, follow the instructions provided in section Connecting Existing Backup Appliance (step 5).

NOTE

The user name and password must be updated in the record of the Credential manager that is already selected at the **Credentials** step of the wizard. If you create a new record and select it, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV will not be able to update credentials and will show you an authorization error.

d. To specify backup repositories the backup appliance can access, follow the instructions provided in section Connecting Existing Backup Appliance (step 6).

e. To save changes made to the appliance settings, click Finish.



Rescanning Backup Appliance

If the backup appliance becomes unavailable, you can rescan it to synchronize data with the backup server. The rescan operation will update the appliance configuration and backup job statistics on the backup server.

To rescan the backup appliance, do the following:

- 1. Open the **Backup Infrastructure** view.
- 2. In the inventory pane, select **Backup Proxies > Unavailable**.
- 3. In the working area, select the backup appliance and click **Rescan Appliance** on the ribbon, or right-click the backup appliance and select **Rescan**.

Proxy Tools	rhvbackupsrv.tech.local - Veeam Backup and Replication 🛛 🗕 🗖 🗙						
E ▼ Home Backup Proxy							?
Edit Remove Rescan Enable Emb Appliance Appliance Appliance Manage Proxy	edded Add Restore r Worker Configuration Tools	Missing Updates					Veeam Al Online Assistant
Backup Infrastructure	Q Type in an object name t	o search for	×				
🖌 🔒 Backup Proxies	Name	Туре	Host 🕇	Description			
📑 Unavailable (1)	🛃 RHV-Backup-Appliance	Red Hat Virtualiza	pdcqa189ovirt.robofish.lo	RHV backup appliance	e used with RHV manager 1		
Backup Repositories Scale-out Repositories WAN Accelerators WAN Accelerators WAN Accelerators WAN Accelerators Wintual Labs Managed Servers Managed Servers Kitrosoft Windows Red Hat Virtualization							
A Home							
Inventory							
Backup Infrastructure							
Storage Infrastructure							
Tape Infrastructure							
Files							
Cia 😜							
1 proxy selected		(Connected to: rhvbackupsrv.tec	h.local (-9 hours) B	uild: 12.1.0.2131 Enterprise	Plus Edition Evaluation: 393	days remaining

Removing Backup Appliance

You can remove the backup appliance from the backup infrastructure if you no longer need it and want to add another appliance to the backup server, or if you want to connect this appliance to another backup server.

IMPORTANT

After you remove the backup appliance:

- You will not be able to perform oVirt VM backup, entire VM restore and VM disk restore operations unless you deploy a new backup appliance. However, you will still be able to manage oVirt VM backups and perform all other restore operations described in section Performing Restore.
- Records about all backup jobs that have been ever processed by the backup appliance will be deleted from the Veeam Backup & Replication configuration database. Backups created by these jobs are displayed under the Backups > Disk (Orphaned) node in the Home view of the Veeam Backup & Replication console.

To remove the backup appliance, do the following:

- 1. Open the **Backup Infrastructure** view.
- 2. In the inventory pane, select **Backup Proxies**.
- 3. In the working area, select the backup appliance and click **Remove Appliance** on the ribbon, or right-click the backup appliance and select **Remove**.
- 4. In the **Veeam Backup & Replication** window, choose whether you want to permanently remove from the host the VM running as the backup appliance.

TIP

If you keep the VM, the configuration settings and records about backup jobs ever processed by the appliance will be retained in the appliance database. This can be helpful if you want to connect the backup appliance to another backup server.



Managing Workers

To perform most data protection and disaster recovery operations, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV uses workers. Workers are Linux-based VMs that are responsible for the interaction between the backup appliance and other Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV components. Workers process backup workload and distribute backup traffic when transferring data to backup repositories.

By default, the worker role is assigned to the backup appliance. However, this is sufficient only for small deployments with low traffic load. For large deployments, it is recommended to deploy dedicated workers as the embedded worker may not have enough bandwidth to process backup traffic. Deploying dedicated workers allows you to increase the maximum number of concurrent backup and restore operations, and to avoid high traffic load on the host running the backup appliance.

Each dedicated worker is launched on a specific host for the duration of a backup or restore operation. While configuring the worker, you can manually select the host or instruct Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV to choose a host automatically. Manual selection may be helpful if you want to avoid launching workers on specific hosts (for example, production ones), while automatic selection allows Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV to optimize data transfer and to balance the load on the hosts in the cluster.

Worker Lifecycle

As soon as a backup or restore session starts, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV launches a worker and test its configuration. Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV checks host affinity settings specified for the worker and chooses a host where the worker VM will run. Then, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV powers on the worker VM and installs system updates (if available). When the backup or restore session completes, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV shuts down the worker VM so that it can be used for other sessions later.

Adding Workers

To deploy a worker and add it to the backup infrastructure, do the following:

- 1. Check prerequisites and limitations.
- 2. Launch the New oVirt KVM worker wizard.
- 3. Specify worker VM configuration.
- 4. Specify worker network settings.
- 5. Apply worker settings.
- 6. Finish working with wizard.

Before You Begin

Before you add a dedicated worker to the backup infrastructure, consider the following:

- Each worker must be provided with sufficient compute resources to handle backup and restore tasks in parallel. The maximum number of concurrent tasks is configured in worker settings if this number is exceeded, the worker will not start a new task until one of the current tasks finishes.
- You can change the maximum number of concurrent tasks (the best practice is to allocate 1 vCPU and 1 GB RAM for each additional task) while deploying a new worker or editing settings of an existing one.
- If you plan to use dedicated workers, you can disable the embedded worker.

Step 1. Launch New oVirt KVM Worker

To launch the **New oVirt KVM Worker** wizard, do the following:

- 1. In the Veeam Backup & Replication console, open the **Backup Infrastructure** view.
- 2. In the inventory pane, select **Backup Proxies**.
- 3. On the ribbon, select Add Proxy.
- 4. Choose the **Red Hat Virtualization** or **Oracle Linux KVM** platform and select the option to deploy a worker.

Proxy Tools	rhvbackupsrv.tech.local - Veeam Backup and Replication	– 🗆 ×
E Home Backup Proxy		
Add Edit Disable Remove Upgrade Proxy Proxy Proxy Proxy Proxy Proxy Manage Proxy Upgrade Backup Infrastructure	Choose whether you want to deploy backup appliance or worker.	Veeam Al Online Assistant
Backup Proxies Backup Repositories External Repositories	Oracle Linux KVM backup appliance Oracle Linux KVM. Oracle Linux KVM. Created by Vecam Backup Created by Vecam Backup Created by Vecam Backup	p & Replication p & Replication
Scale-out Repositories WAN Accelerators Service Providers	Oracle Linux KVM worker Oracle Virt KVM backup VM Adds a worker to Oracle Linux KVM. Worker residing on host RHV oVirt KVM backup a RHV oVirt KVM backup a RHV oVirt KVM backup a) appliance 387 appliance
 SureBackup Application Groups Virtual Labs 	Worker residing on host "	189
▲ (∰ Managed Servers ∰ Microsoft Windows ₩ oVirt KVM		
A Home		
Inventory		
Backup Infrastructure		
Storage Infrastructure		
Tape Infrastructure		
Files	Cancel	
History		
6 proxies	Connected to: rhvbackupsrv.tech.local (-8 hours) Build: 12.1.0.2131 Enterprise Plus Edition Evaluatio	n: 291 days remaining

Step 2. Specify Worker VM Settings

At the Virtual Machine step of the wizard, do the following:

 Click Choose next to the Cluster field, and specify a host where the worker will be launched in the Select Cluster or Host window. If you select the whole cluster, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV will automatically define the host to launch the worker.

For a cluster to be displayed in the list of the available clusters, it must be added to the virtual environment as described in Red Hat Virtualization documentation or Oracle Linux Virtualization Manager documentation.

2. In the **Name** field, specify a name for the worker.

The maximum length of the name is 40 characters; the following characters are only supported: a -z, A-Z, 0-9, -.

3. Click **Choose** next to the **Storage Domain** field, and specify a storage domain where worker system files will be stored in the **Select Storage Domain** window.

For a domain to be displayed in the list of the available domains, it must be configured in the virtual environment as described in Red Hat Virtualization documentation or Oracle Linux Virtualization Manager documentation.

4. In the **Worker description** field, provide a description for future reference. The field already contains a default description with information about the user who added the worker, date and time when the worker was added.

The maximum length of the description is 1024 characters.

5. In the **Max concurrent tasks** field, specify the number of tasks that the worker will be able to handle in parallel. If this value is exceeded, the worker will not start a new task until one of the currently running tasks finishes.

The default number of concurrent tasks is set to 4. When you change this value, the wizard automatically adjusts the amount of resources that will be allocated to the worker VM. If you want to specify the amount of resources manually, click **Advanced**.

New oVirt KVM Worker		×
KVM Virtual Machine	nachine for oVirt KVM worker placement.	
Virtual Machine	Cluster or host: 🌗	
	Default	Choose
Networks	Name:	
Apply	worker-387	
Summany	Storage Domain:	
Summary	hosted_storage	Choose
	Description:	
	Worker residing on host 387	Advanced X
	Max concurrent tasks:	Number of vCPU cores: 4 Memory size (GB): 4 OK Cancel
	Advanced proxy settings include vCPU and memory sizing setti	ngs for proxy VM. Advanced
	< Previous Ne:	ct > Finish Cancel

Step 3. Configure Network Settings

At the **Networks** step of the wizard, do the following:

1. Click **Browse** to select a network adapter to which the worker will be connected.

For a network to be displayed in the list of the available networks, it must be configured in the virtual environment as described in Red Hat Virtualization documentation or Oracle Linux Virtualization Manager documentation.

2. If DHCP is enabled for the selected network adapter, the IP address and DNS settings of the worker can be obtained automatically.

If DHCP is disabled for the selected network adapter, or you want to specify an IP address and configure DNS settings manually, click Configure and do the following in the **Network settings** window:

- To specify an IP address, select the **Use the following IP address** option and enter the worker IP address, subnet mask and default gateway.
- To configure DNS settings, select the Use the following DNS server address option and enter the IP addresses of the preferred and alternate DNS servers.

New oVirt KVM Worker		×
KVM Networks Specify network sett	ings for oVirt KVM worker.	
Virtual Machine	Network: ovirtmgmt	Browse
Networks	Specify network this worker will be connected to.	
Apply		
Summary	IP address: Obtain automatically	
	DNS server: Obtain automatically	Configure
	< Previous Apply Finish	Cancel

Step 4. Apply Worker Settings

At the **Apply** step of the wizard, wait for the worker to be added to the backup infrastructure and then click **Next**.



Step 5. Finish Working with Wizard

At the **Summary** step of the wizard, review summary information and click **Finish**.

New oVirt KVM Worker	×
You can copy the con	figuration information below for future reference.
Virtual Machine Networks Apply Summary	Summary: oVirt KVM worker has been created and configured successfully Virtualization Manager: pdcqa387ovirt.robofish.local Virtual machine: worker-387 Network settings: Network adapter: ovirtmgmt IP Address: Obtain automatically DNS server: Obtain automatically Affinity settings: Disabled
	< Previous Next > Finish Cancel

Enabling and Disabling Workers

By default, workers are launched when jobs or restore sessions start. However, you can temporarily disable a worker — this may be helpful when you reconfigure a worker and you do not want it to be used for a backup or restore operation. You will still be able to enable the disabled worker at any time you need.

To enable or disable a worker, do the following:

- 1. Open the **Backup Infrastructure** view.
- 2. In the inventory pane, select **Backup Proxies**.
- 3. In the working area, select the worker and click **Disable Worker** or **Enable Worker** on the ribbon, or rightclick the worker and select **Disable** or **Enable**.

TIP

If you use dedicated workers, it is recommended that you disable the embedded worker, To do that, in the working area, select the backup appliance and click **Disable Embedded Worker** on the ribbon.

記 Proxy Tools		rhvbackupsrv.tech.local - Veeam	Backup and Replication	– 🗆 ×
E + Home Backup Proxy				•
Edit Disable Remove Worker Worker Worker Manage Worker				Veeam Al Online Assistant
Backup Infrastructure	Q Type in an object name to search for	×		
Backup Proxies Backup Repositories External Repositories Scale-out Repositories WAN Accelerators WAN Accelerators SureBackup Application Groups Wirtual Labs Wintanged Servers Marged Servers Servers Ovirt KVM	Name VMware Backup Proxy Wware Backup Proxy Watch Backup Proxy Tabackup-appliance-oracle Worker-387 Tabackup-appliance-rhv	Type VMware Agent oVirt KVM oVirt KVM worker oVirt KVM	Host ↓ rhvbackupsrv.tech.local pdcqa387ovit.rboofish.local Disable Nemove Properties	Description Created by Veeam Backup & Replication Created by Veeam Backup & Replication Orcale of Virk VM backup appliance Worker residing on host 387 RHV oVirt KVM backup appliance
Home Home Karal				
1 proxy selected	с	onnected to: rhvbackupsrv.tech.loca	ıl (-8 hours) Build: 12.1.0.2131 Enterpri	se Plus Edition Evaluation: 296 days remaining
Editing Workers

For each worker, you can modify settings specified while adding the worker to the backup infrastructure:

- 1. Open the **Backup Infrastructure** view.
- 2. In the inventory pane, select Backup Proxies.
- 3. In the working area, select the worker and click **Edit Worker** on the ribbon, or right-click the worker and select **Properties**.
- 4. Complete the Edit oVirt KVM Worker wizard:
 - a. To provide a new name and description for the worker, to change the storage domain where worker system files are stored, to specify a host where the worker is launched or to modify the number of tasks that the worker is able to handle in parallel, follow the instructions provided in section Adding Workers (step 2).
 - b. To change the network to which the worker is connected or to specify a new IP address for the worker, follow the instructions provided in section Adding Workers (step 3).
 - c. To save changes made to the worker settings, click Finish.

IMPORTANT

It is not recommended that you change the worker storage domain, decrease the amount of allocated resources, adjust the affinity settings or modify the network settings while the worker is currently transferring data. In this case, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV will terminate the related operations, power off the worker and update the settings immediately.



Updating Workers

While starting workers, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV automatically downloads updates from Veeam repositories and installs them. If workers are not connected to the internet, you can instruct Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV to use an HTTP proxy that will provide access to the required resources.

If workers do not have access to the internet and no HTTP proxy is used, disable automatic updates to eliminate update failures and session warnings:

- 1. Open the **Backup Infrastructure** view.
- 2. In the inventory pane, select **Backup Proxies**.
- 3. In the working area, select the backup appliance and click **Edit Appliance** on the ribbon, or right-click the backup appliance and select **Properties**.
- 4. At the Networks step of the Edit oVirt KVM Proxy wizard, clear the Obtain updates check box.

Edit oVirt KVM Proxy		×
Networks Specify network sett	ings for oVirt KVM backup proxy.	
Virtual Machine	Network: ovirtmgmt	
Networks	Specify network this backup proxy will be connected to.	
Credentials		
Access Permissions	Hostname: backup-appliance-rhv	
Apply	IP address: Obtain automatically	Configure
Summary	Sho serven obtain altoinateany	Comgarcin
	 ✓ Enable SSH server ① Obtain updates ① 	
	< Previous Next > Finish	Cancel

Removing Workers

Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV allows you to permanently remove workers if you no longer need them. Note that you can remove a worker only when it is not processing a backup or restore operation.

To remove a worker, do the following:

- 1. Open the **Backup Infrastructure** view.
- 2. In the inventory pane, select **Backup Proxies**.
- 3. In the working area, select the worker and click **Remove Worker** on the ribbon, or right-click the worker and select **Remove**.
- 4. In the **Veeam Backup & Replication** window, confirm that you want to permanently delete the worker.

泡 Proxy Tools 王→ Home Backup Proxy		rhvbackupsrv.tech.local - Veeam Back	cup and Replication	- ¤ × @
Edit Disable Remove Worker Worker Manage Worker				Veeam Al Online Assistant
Backup Infrastructure	Q Type in an object name to search for	×		
Backup Proxies Backup Repositories External Repositories Scale-out Repositories WAN Accelerators Service Providers Application Groups Application Groups Wirtual Labs Managed Servers Ret Microsoft Windows Monoged Servers	Name VMware Backup Proxy Kackup Proxy Carbon Backup Proxy Carbon Backup-appliance-oracle Carbon Market - 387 Carbon Backup-appliance-rhv	Type VMware Agent oVirt KVM oVirt KVM worker oVirt KVM	Host ↓ rhvbackupsrv.tech.local rhvbackupsrv.tech.local pdcqa387ovirt.robofish.local Disable Fish.local Fish.local Properties	Description Created by Veeam Backup & Replication Created by Veeam Backup & Replication Orcale oVirt KVM backup appliance Worker residing on host 387 RHV oVirt KVM backup appliance
Home Inventory Carlo Backup Infrastructure Carlo Storage Infrastructure Carlo Infrastructure Files History				
1 proxy selected	Con	nected to: rhvbackupsrv.tech.local (-8	hours) Build: 12.1.0.2131 Enterprise	e Plus Edition Evaluation: 296 days remaining

Performing Configuration Backup and Restore

You can back up and restore the configuration database that stores data collected from the backup appliance for the existing jobs and session records. If the backup appliance goes down for some reason, you can redeploy it and quickly restore its configuration from a configuration backup. You can also use a configuration backup to migrate the configuration of one backup appliance to another backup appliance in the backup infrastructure.

It is recommended that you regularly perform configuration backup for every backup appliance present in the backup infrastructure. Periodic configuration backups reduce the risk of data loss and minimize the administrative overhead costs in case any problems with the backup appliances occur.

You can run configuration backup manually on demand, or instruct Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV to do it automatically on a regular basis. Note that the backup appliance configuration database is backed up together with the backup server configuration database. However, the backup appliance configuration restore operation does not affect the backup server configuration.

Backing Up Configuration Settings Manually

While performing configuration backup, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV exports data from the configuration database and saves it to a backup file in a backup repository. To back up the configuration database of the backup appliance manually, do the following:

- 1. From the main menu of the Veeam Backup & Replication console, select **Configuration Backup**.
- 2. In the **Configuration Backup Settings** window, do the following:
 - a. Select the **Enable configuration backup to the following repository** check box and choose a repository where the configuration backup will be stored. Note that you cannot store configuration backups in scale-out backup repositories and external repositories.

For a backup repository to be displayed in the list of available repositories, it must be added to the backup infrastructure. For more information, see the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Adding Backup Repositories.

- b. In the **Restore points to keep** field, specify the number of configuration backups you want to keep.
- c. Select the Enable backup file encryption check box.
- d. From the **Password** drop-down list, select a password.

IMPORTANT

If you do not specify the password, the Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV configuration database will not be backed up.

For passwords to be displayed in the **Password** list, they must be added to the Password Manager as described in the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section **Password Manager**. If you have not added the necessary password to the Password Manager beforehand, you can do this without closing the **Configuration Backup Settings** window. To add a password, click **Add** and specify a password and a password hint that will help you remember your password if you forget it.

If you use Veeam Backup Enterprise Manager, you can also enable the Loss protection functionality that can help you decrypt the data in case you have lost or forgotten the password. For more information, see the Veeam Backup Enterprise Manager Guide, section Managing Encryption Keys.

- e. Click Apply.
- f. Click Backup now.

Once Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV creates a successful configuration backup, you can use it to restore configuration data.



Backing Up Configuration Settings Automatically

While performing configuration backup, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV exports data from the configuration database and saves it to backup files in a backup repository. To instruct Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV to back up the configuration database of the backup appliance automatically by schedule, do the following:

- 1. From the main menu of the Veeam Backup & Replication console, select **Configuration Backup**.
- 2. In the **Configuration Backup Settings** window, do the following:
 - a. Select the **Enable configuration backup to the following repository** check box and choose a repository where the configuration backup will be stored. Note that you cannot store configuration backups in scale-out backup repositories and external repositories.

For a backup repository to be displayed in the list of available repositories, it must be added to the backup infrastructure. For more information, see the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Adding Backup Repositories.

- b. In the **Restore points to keep** field, specify the number of configuration backups you want to keep.
- c. Click **Schedule** and choose whether configuration backups will be created every day or monthly on specific days.
- d. Select the Enable backup file encryption check box.
- e. From the **Password** drop-down list, select a password.

IMPORTANT

If you do not specify the password, the Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV configuration database will not be backed up.

For passwords to be displayed in the **Password** list, they must be added to the Password Manager as described in the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section **Password Manager**. If you have not added the necessary password to the Password Manager beforehand, you can do this without closing the **Configuration Backup Settings** window. To add a password, click **Add** and specify a password and a password hint that will help you remember your password if you forget it.

If you use Veeam Backup Enterprise Manager, you can also enable the Loss protection functionality that can help you decrypt the data in case you have lost or forgotten the password. For more information, see the Veeam Backup Enterprise Manager Guide, section Managing Encryption Keys.

f. Click OK.

Once Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV creates a successful configuration backup, you can use it to restore configuration data.



Restoring Configuration Settings

Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV offers restore of the configuration database that can be helpful in the following situations:

- The configuration database got corrupted, and you want to recover data from a configuration backup.
- The backup appliance got corrupted, and you want to recover its configuration from a configuration backup.
- The backup appliance went down, and you want to apply its configuration to a new backup appliance.
- You want to roll back the configuration database to a specific point in time.
- You want to apply the backed-up configuration of a backup appliance version 2.0 (or later) to a newly deployed backup appliance.

When you restore the configuration database of a backup appliance, consider the following:

- If the backup appliance is still present in the backup infrastructure, you cannot restore its configuration to another backup appliance added to same backup infrastructure. This limitation prevents collisions between jobs with the same database ID.
- Network settings of the backup appliance remain unchanged. However, you will be able to change the settings after the configuration restore.
- Configuration settings of dedicated workers will be restored from the configuration backup, and all existing workers will be removed. If any of the settings (such as worker network settings, host affinity or storage container configuration) is invalid in the current virtual environment, a warning message will be displayed in configuration restore logs. To update worker settings, modify worker configuration after the configuration restore.
- If you restore the configuration database of a backup appliance originally residing in another cluster to protect migrated VMs, you will need to reconfigure backup jobs. UUIDs of migrated VMs change, therefore, you will need to re-add VMs to a backup job that will start new backup chains for them.

IMPORTANT

Before you start the restore process, stop and disable all jobs that are currently running.

To restore the configuration database, do the following:

- 1. Launch the Configuration Restore wizard.
- 2. Choose a backup file.
- 3. Review the backup file information.
- 4. Provide the encryption password.
- 5. Choose restore options.
- 6. Track the restore progress.
- 7. Finish working with the wizard.

Step 1. Launch Configuration Restore Wizard

To launch the **Configuration restore** wizard, do the following:

- 1. In the Veeam Backup & Replication console, open the **Backup Infrastructure** view.
- 2. In the inventory pane, select **Backup Proxies**.
- 3. In the working area, select the backup appliance and click **Restore Configuration** on the ribbon, or rightclick the backup appliance and select **Restore Configuration**.

Proxy To ols	rh	vbackupsrv.tech.local - Veeam Backup a	and Replication	- ¤ ×
E- Home Backup Proxy Edit Remove Disable Add Add Appliance Appliance Embedded Worker Worker Cor Manage Proxy	Restore Missing Missing Tools			Veam Al
Backup Infrastructure Backup Proxies Backup Proxies Backup Repositories Carbon Contempositories Man Accelerators Service Providers Garbon Contempositories Backup Contempositories Backup Contempositories Backup Provides Backup Prov	C Type in an object name to search for Name VNaves Backup Proxy B Backup-Proxy worker-387 backup-appliance-rhv	Type VMware Agent oVirt KVM oVirt KVM oVirt KVM	Host ↓ rhvbackupsrv.tech.local rhvbackupsrv.tech.local pdcqa387ovirt.robofish.local pdcqa387ovirt.robofish.local Disable embedded worker Add worker Missing updates Remove Restore Configuration Properties	Description Created by Veeam Backup & Replication Created by Veeam Backup & Replication Orcale oVirt KVM backup appliance Worker residing on host 387 RHV oVirt KVM backup appliance
Home Inventory Backup Infrastructure Storage Infrastructure Tape Infrastructure Files History				
1 proxy selected	Conne	cted to: rhvbackupsrv.tech.local (-8 hou	rs) Build: 12.1.0.2131 Enterpris	e Plus Edition Evaluation: 296 days remaining

Step 2. Choose Backup File

At the **Configuration Backup** step of the wizard, do the following:

1. From the **Backup repository** list, select the backup server or backup repository where the necessary configuration backup file is stored.

For a backup repository to be displayed in the **Backup repository** list, it must be added to the backup infrastructure as described in the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section **Backup Repository**. Note that the repository list does not include scale-out backup repositories and external repositories as they cannot store configuration backup files.

NOTE

Configuration restore is supported for backup appliances version 2.0, 2a, 3.0. 3a or 3b only if their configuration backup files are stored on the backup server.

2. Click **Browse** and select the necessary file in the **Select file** window.

If the selected configuration backup file is not stored on the backup server, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV will copy the file to a temporary folder on the server and automatically delete it from the folder as soon as the restore process completes.



Step 3. Review Backup Details

[This step applies only if you restore the backup configuration database of a backup appliance version 4.0 or later]

Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV will analyze the content of the selected backup file and display the following information:

- Backup file the date and time when the backup file was created.
- Downloaded backup file the temporary location of the configuration backup file on the backup server.
- Product the version of Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV that was installed the initial backup appliance.
- Catalogs configuration data saved in the file (such as the number of configured jobs, users, logged session records and so on).

At the **Backup Content** step of the wizard, review the provided information and click **Next** to confirm that you want to use the selected file to restore the configuration data.



Step 4. Provide Encryption Password

At the **Password** step of the wizard, provide a password that was used to encrypt the file while creating configuration backup.

If you do not remember the password, you can use an alternative way for data encryption. However, this option is available only if password Loss protection was enabled when you created the backup. For more information, see the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Decrypting Data Without Password.

Configuration restore		×
Password Specify configuration	n backup's pa	assword.
Configuration Backup	Password:	••••••
Backup Contents	Hint:	Config Password
Password		
Restore Options		
Restore		
Summary		
		1 Your backup administrator chose not to enable password loss protection.
		< Previous Next > Finish Cancel

Step 5. Choose Restore Options

At the **Restore Options** step of the wizard, you can choose whether you want to restore jobs and session logs.

Configuration	n restore		×
KVIA S	Restore Options Specify what additio selected configuration	nal configuration data you want to restore. Once you click Next, the wizard will proceed with restoring t on data into the specified backup appliance.	he
Configuratic Backup Con Password	on Backup itents	Restore Session history Restores jobs and restore sessions history.	
Restore Opt	tions		
Restore			
Summary			
		< Previous Restore Finish Cancel	

Step 6. Track Restore Progress

Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV will display the results of every step performed while executing the configuration restore. At the **Restore** step of the wizard, wait for the restore process to complete and click **Next**.

Configuration restore		×
KV/A Restore Please wait while the c	onfiguration is being restored	
Configuration Backup	Message	Duration
Backup Contents	Restoring folder backups (100% done)	0:03:01
buckup contents	Oatabase backup processed (391 items)	0:03:04
Password	Restoring files backups (100% done)	0:03:03
Restore Ontions	Finalizing configuration catalog restore	0:03:03
Restore options	Successfully completed the configuration restore of the backu	0:03:03
Restore	The backup appliance started successfully	0:00:10
C	Old workers were removed successfully	
Summary	▲ One or more workers have configuration issues. Update the w	
	Successfully initialized the backup appliance	0:00:04
	S Applying email notifications settings configured on the backu	
	Successfully updated email notification settings	
	Updating existing backup chains	
	Rescanning the backup appliance	0:00:04
	Snapshot of backup appliance backup-appliance-rhv was dele	0:01:02
		~
	< Previous Next >	Finish Cancel

Step 7. Finish Working with Wizard

At the **Summary** step of the wizard, click **Finish** to finalize the process of configuration data restore.

Configuration re	store		×
KVL1 Sum Revie Rem	imary ew the configura ember to enable	tion restore result, and click Finish to exit the wizard. all jobs back once configuration data synchronization completes.	
Configuration B	Backup	Summary:	
Backup Content	ts	Backup appliance configuration restore has finished with warnings.	
Password			
Restore Options	s		
Restore			
Summary			
		< Previous Next > Finish Cancel	

Performing Backup

To produce backups of oVirt VMs, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV runs backup jobs. A backup job is a collection of settings that define the way backup operations are performed: what data to back up, where to store backups, when to start the backup process, and so on.

One backup job can be used to process multiple VMs, but you can back up each VM with one backup job at a time. If a VM is added to more than one backup job, it will be processed only by the backup job that started earlier.

You can instruct the Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV to run jobs automatically according to a specified schedule or start them manually.

How Backup Works

While creating image-level backups, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV does not install agent software inside VMs to retrieve data. Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV uses native oVirt capabilities to take VM snapshots and produces backups in the following way:

- 1. The backup server starts a backup job and forwards the backup session data to the backup appliance.
- 2. The backup appliance connects to the Virtualization manager over REST API and creates snapshots of all VMs added to the job.
- 3. The backup appliance sends a REST API request to the Virtualization manager to create an image transfer session and to provide its URL.
- 4. The backup appliance launches a worker.
- 5. The worker retrieves the VM data using the provided URL.
- 6. The worker compresses and deduplicates the VM data and forwards it to the target backup repository in the native Veeam format.



Backup Chain

Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV creates a new backup file in a backup repository during every backup session. A sequence of backup files created during a set of backup sessions makes up a backup chain. Each backup chain contains data for one VM only. If a backup job includes several VMs, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV creates one backup chain for each VM processed by the job.

The backup chain includes backup files of the following types:

- VBK a full backup file stores a copy of the full VM image.
- VIB incremental backup files store incremental changes of the VM image.
- VBM backup metadata files store information about the backup job, VMs processed by the backup job, number and structure of backup files, restore points, and so on. Metadata files facilitate import of backups, backup mapping and other operations.

Full and incremental backup files act as restore points for backed -up VMs that let you roll back VM data to the necessary state. To recover a VM to a specific point in time, the chain of backup files created for the VM must contain a full backup file and a set of incremental backup files dependent on the full backup file.

If some file in the backup chain is missing, you will not be able to roll back to the necessary state. For this reason, you must not delete individual backup files from the backup repository manually. Instead, you must specify retention policy settings that will let you maintain the necessary number of backup files in the backup repository.

Backup Methods

Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV provides the following methods for creating backup chains:

• Forever forward incremental

When the forever forward incremental backup method is used, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV creates a backup chain that consists of the first full backup file (VBK) and a set of forward incremental backup files (VIBs) following it. For more information, see section Forever Forward Incremental Backup.

This backup method helps you save space on the backup storage because Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV stores only one full backup file and removes incremental backup files once the retention period is exceeded.

• Forward incremental

When the forward incremental backup method is used, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV creates a backup chain that consists of multiple full backup files (VBKs) and sets of forward incremental backup files (VIBs) following each full backup file. Full backups created using the synthetic full or active full method split the backup chain into shorter series. This lowers the chances of losing the backup chain completely and makes this backup method the most reliable. For more information, see section Forward Incremental Backup.

This backup method requires more storage space than other methods because the backup chains contains multiple full backup files and sometimes Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV stores more restore points than specified in the retention policy settings due to the specifics of the forward incremental retention policy.

Forever Forward Incremental Backup

To create a backup chain for a VM protected by a backup job without a full backup schedule, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV implements the forever forward incremental backup:

- 1. During the first (full) backup session, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV copies the full VM image and creates a full backup file in the backup repository. The full backup file becomes a starting point in the backup chain.
- 2. During subsequent backup sessions, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV copies only those data blocks that have changed since the previous backup session, and stores these data blocks to incremental backup files in the backup repository. The content of each incremental backup file depends on the content of the full backup file and the preceding incremental backup files in the backup chain.



Forward Incremental Backup

To create a backup chain for a VM protected by a backup job with scheduled full backups, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV implements the forward incremental backup method:

- 1. During the first (full) backup session, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV copies the full VM image and creates a full backup file in the backup repository. The full backup file becomes a starting point in the backup chain.
- 2. During subsequent backup sessions, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV copies only those data blocks that have changed since the previous backup session, and stores these data blocks to incremental backup files in the backup repository. The content of each incremental backup file depends on the content of the full backup file and the preceding incremental backup files in the backup chain.



3. On a day when the synthetic full or active full backup is scheduled, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV creates a full backup file and adds it to the backup chain. Incremental restore points produced after this full backup file use it as a new starting point.



Changed Block Tracking

The changed block tracking (CBT) mechanism allows Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV to increase the speed and efficiency of incremental backups:

- During a full backup session Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV reads only written data blocks, while unallocated data blocks are filtered out.
- During an incremental backup session, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV reads only those data blocks that have changed since the previous backup session.

To detect unallocated and changed data blocks, CBT relies on the oVirt REST API:

- 1. During the first (full) backup session, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV creates a snapshot of a VM using native oVirt capabilities. To do that, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV sends API requests to access the content of the snapshot and to detect unallocated data blocks.
- 2. During subsequent sessions, new snapshots are created. Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV sends API requests to access and to compare the content of the snapshot created during the previous backup session and the snapshot created during the current backup session. This allows Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV to detect data blocks that have changed since the previous backup session.

IMPORTANT

If Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV is unable to use CBT while creating incremental backups, you may get the following warnings in backup session logs:

- "*Unable to enable oVirt incremental backups for disk. Full scan backups will be performed*". To resolve the issue, follow the Veeam KB article.
- "The Disk id=<disk id> has RAW format and can be backed up only in full scan mode". To resolve the issue, take a VM snapshot in the Administration Portal as described in Red Hat Virtualization documentation or Oracle Linux Virtualization Manager documentation. Alternatively, back up the VM and restore its VM disks with the Restore all VM disks to QCOW2 format option selected at the Configure Mapping Settings step of the Virtual Disk Restore wizard.

Active Full Backup

In some cases, you need to regularly create a full backup. For example, your corporate backup policy may require that you create a full backup on weekend and run incremental backup on work days. To let you conform to these requirements, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV allows you to create active full backups (either manually or automatically according to a specific schedule).

When creating an active full backup, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV starts a new backup chain for the VM. All further created incremental backups use the latest active full backup file as a new starting point. The old full backup file from the old backup chain remains on disk until it is automatically deleted according to the retention policy.



The active full backup session starts at the same time when the backup job is scheduled. For example, if you schedule the backup job to run at 12:00 AM Sunday through Friday, and schedule active full backup to be created on Saturday, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV will start a backup job session that will produce an active full backup at 12:00 AM on Saturday.

If the backup job is not scheduled to run automatically or is disabled, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV will not perform active full backup. If a regular backup session and an active full backup session are scheduled on the same day, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV will produce an active full backup — an incremental backup that should have been created by the regular backup session will not be added to the backup chain. However, if you run the backup job again on the same day manually, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV will perform incremental backup in a regular manner.

Synthetic Full Backup

In some situations, running active full backups periodically may not be an option. Active full backups are resource-intensive and consume considerable amount of network bandwidth. As an alternative, you can create synthetic full backups that also produce VBK files and contain data of the whole VM. However, while creating synthetic full backups, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV does not retrieve VM data from the cluster but processes the data that is already stored in the backup repository.

To create a synthetic full backup, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV performs the following operations:

1. Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV creates a regular incremental backup and adds it to the backup chain.



2. Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV creates a new synthetic full backup using backup files that are already available in the backup chain, including the newly created incremental backup file.



3. Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV deletes the created incremental backup as its data is already incorporated in the synthetic full backup.



When creating a synthetic full backup, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV starts a new backup chain for the VM. All further created incremental backups use the latest full backup file as a new starting point. The old full backup file from the old backup chain remains on disk until it is automatically deleted according to the retention policy.

NOTE

The synthetic full backup session starts only on the day when the backup job is scheduled. For example, if you schedule the backup job to run at 12:00 AM Sunday through Friday, and schedule synthetic full backup to be created on Saturday, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV will never start a backup job session that will produce a synthetic full backup.

If the backup job is not scheduled to run automatically or is disabled, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV will not perform synthetic full backup. If a regular backup session and a synthetic full backup session are scheduled on the same day, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV will produce a synthetic full backup — an incremental backup that should have been created by the regular backup session will not be added to the backup chain. However, if you run the backup job again on the same day manually, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV will perform incremental backup in a regular manner.

Retention Policy

Backups created by jobs are not kept forever – they are removed according to retention policy settings specified while creating the jobs. Depending on the data protection scenario, retention policy can be specified:

• In days

Restore points in the backup chain can be stored only for the allowed period of time. If a restore point is older than the specified time limit, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV removes it from the backup chain. Since for retention policy specified in days, the backup chain must contain at least 3 restore points, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV may retain restore points for a longer period than configured in the retention policy settings.

• In restore points

The chain can contain only the allowed number of restore points. If the number of allowed restore points is exceeded, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV removes the earliest restore point from the chain.

Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV retains the number of latest restore points defined in job scheduling settings as described in section Creating Backup Jobs. For backup chains created by jobs without scheduled active or synthetic full backups, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV applies forever forward incremental backup retention policy. For backup chains created by jobs that regularly produce active or synthetic full backups, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV applies forever forward incremental backups, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV applies forward incremental backup scheduled active or synthetic full backups, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV applies forward incremental backup retention policy.

NOTE

To backup chains created by backup jobs that no longer exist, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV applies background retention.

Forever Forward Incremental Backup Retention Policy

To track and remove redundant restore points from a forever forward incremental backup chain, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV performs the following actions once a day:

- 1. Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV checks the configuration database to detect backup chains where the number of allowed restore points is exceeded.
 - If retention policy is specified in days, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV detects backup chains with restore points that are older than the specified time limit.
 - If retention policy is specified in restore points, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV detects backup chains where the number of allowed restore points is exceeded.
- 2. If a redundant restore point exists in a backup chain, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV transforms the backup chain in the following way:
 - a. Rebuilds the full backup to include there data of the incremental backup that follows the full backup. To do that, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV injects into the full backup data blocks from the earliest incremental backup in the chain. This way, the full backup 'moves' forward in the standard backup chain.



b. Removes the earliest incremental backup from the chain as redundant – this data has already been injected into the full backup.



3. Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV repeats step 2 for all other redundant restore points found in the backup chain until all the restore points are removed. As data from multiple restore points is injected into the rebuilt full backup, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV ensures that the backup chain is not broken and that you will be able to recover your data when needed.



Forward Incremental Backup Retention Policy

To track and remove redundant restore points from a forward incremental backup chain, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV performs the following actions once a day:

- 1. Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV checks the configuration database to detect forward incremental backup chains where a new full backup has been created (which starts a new backup chain fragment).
- 2. Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV checks the following:
 - If retention policy is specified in days, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV checks whether the period to keep restore points in the new chain fragment has reached the allowed time limit.
 - If retention policy is specified in restore points, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV checks whether the number of restore points in the new chain fragment has reached the number of allowed restore points.
- 3. If the new backup chain fragment has reached the limit of allowed restore points, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV removes all restore points of the older backup chain fragment.



Creating Backup Jobs

To create a backup job, do the following:

- 1. Check prerequisites and limitations.
- 2. Launch the New Backup Job wizard.
- 3. Specify a job name and description.
- 4. Selects VMs to backup.
- 5. Specify a backup repository where backups will be stored and configure backup settings.
- 6. Create a schedule for the backup job.
- 7. Finish working with the wizard.

Before You Begin

Before you create a backup job, consider the following limitations:

- You can back up each VM with one backup job at a time. If a VM is already being processed by a backup job, another backup job will not start processing this VM until the currently running backup operation completes.
- You cannot back up a VM being restored. Wait for the restore process to complete, and then start the backup job.
- You cannot back up hosted-engine VMs. However, you can create a backup of the oVirt configuration. For more information, see Red Hat Virtualization documentation or Oracle Linux Virtualization Manager documentation.
- You cannot back up a VM while previewing its snapshot. For more information, see Red Hat Virtualization documentation or Oracle Linux Virtualization Manager documentation.
- You cannot back up a VM that has shareable disks or direct LUN disks attached.
- You cannot include into a backup job a VM that is being backed up by 3rd party software or an backup appliance connected to another backup server. Wait for the backup process to complete or stop the currently running job manually, and then add the VM to the necessary backup job.
- By default, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV applies the following deduplication and compression settings to backed-up data:
 - Deduplication: *Enabled*
 - Data compression level: Optimal
 - Storage optimization: *Local target* (1024 KB block size)

Due to technical limitations, you cannot change these settings while configuring backup jobs.

- By default, backup encryption is disabled for backed-up data. However, you can enable encryption at the repository level. For more information, see the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Access Permissions.
- VM guest OS file indexing is not supported for backups created with Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV.
- Since Veeam Backup & Replication does not allow you to assign information about locations to the Virtualization manager and backup appliance, job statistics do not include information on the oVirt VM data migration between different geographic regions.
- If you want to back up a VM that has been configured with a oVirt KVM Virtualization Cloud-Init custom script, first remove the script from the VM since it may contain secure data (such as credentials and authorized keys) that will appear in Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV backup logs.

Step 1. Launch New Backup Job Wizard

In the inventory pane, select **Jobs** and navigate to **Backup > Virtual Machine>oVirt KVM** and choose **Red Hat Virtualization** or **Oracle Linux KVM**.



Step 2. Specify Job Name and Description

At the **Name** step of the wizard, use the **Name** and **Description** fields to specify a name for the new backup job and to provide a description for future reference. The job name must be unique in Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV.

The maximum length of the name is 40 characters; the following characters are not supported: ~ " $\# \% \& * : < > !? / \{ | \} . '`$ \$. The maximum length of the description is 1024 characters.

New Backup Job		\times
Name KVM Type in a name and	description for this backup job.	
Name	Name:	
	FileServer Backup	
Virtual Machines	Description:	
Storage	Daily server backup	
Schedule		
Summary		
	< Previous Next > Finish Cancel	

Step 3. Configure Backup Source Settings

At the Virtual Machines step of the wizard, specify the following backup source settings:

- 1. Choose resources to back up.
- 2. Choose disks to protect.

Step 3a. Choose Resources

First, at the **Virtual Machines** step of the wizard, specify the backup scope – resources that Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV will back up:

- 1. Click Add.
- 2. In the **Add Objects** window, choose whether you want to back up specific VMs or groups of VMs arranged by tags:
 - $\circ~$ If you click the VM icon, you must specify the machines explicitly.

NOTE

If any of the selected VMs have disks in the RAW format attached, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV will display the following warning: "*There are some VM disks that do not support oVirt incremental backup. The policy will do a full scan backup for those disks*". Due to technical limitations, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV is only able to apply the CBT mechanism to disks in the QCOW2 format while performing incremental backup.

You can proceed with the wizard and resolve the issue later by using one of the following workarounds:

- Take VM snapshots in the Administration Portal as described in Red Hat Virtualization documentation or Oracle Linux Virtualization Manager documentation.
- Back up the VMs and restore their disks with the **Restore all VM disks to QCOW2 format** option selected at the **Configure Mapping Settings** step of the **Virtual Disk Restore** wizard.
 - If you click the Tag icon and add a tag to the backup scope, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV will regularly check for new VMs assigned the added tag and automatically update the backup job settings to include these VMs in the scope. For a tag to be displayed in the list, it must be created in the Administration Portal and assigned to a VM. For more information on tags, see oVirt Product Documentation.

By default, backup jobs process all VMs to which the added tags are assigned. If you want to exclude specific VMs from the backup scope, click **Exclusions** and specify the VMs that you do not want to back up – the procedure is the same as described for including VMs in the backup scope.

While running the job, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV processes resources in the order they are added to the backup scope. However, you can change the order, for example, if you add some mission-critical VMs to the job and want them to be processed first. To change the processing order, select a resource and use the **Up** or **Down** buttons.

NOTE

If you include a tag into the backup scope, VMs assigned this tag are processed at random. To ensure that the VMs are processed in a specific order, you must add them as standalone VMs.

By default, jobs process all disks attached to VMs included into the backup scope. However, you can protect only specific disks of the selected resources. For more information, see Step 3b. Choose Disks and Volume Groups.

New Backup Job	Add Objects	×	×
Virtual Machines Select virtual mach changes as you ad	Select objects: Name	Type Ta	ection that automatically
N	🔚 File_Server	Virtual Machine	
Name Virtual Machines Storage			Add Remove
Schedule			Exclusions
Summary			★ Up↓ Down
	l	X	Total size: 0 B
		OK Cancel	Finish Cancel

Step 3b. Choose Disks

Second, at the **Virtual Machines** step of the wizard, you can instruct Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV to back up only specific virtual disks related to the selected backup scope:

- 1. Click **Exclusions**.
- 2. In the Exclusions window, switch to the Disks tab and click Add.
- 3. In the Add Objects window, select a resource that you have added to the backup scope at step 3a, and click OK.
- 4. Back to the Exclusions window, select the resource and click Edit.
- 5. In the Select Disks window, select the Selected Disks option and click Add.
- 6. Select disks that you want to back up.

Disks that you do not select will be excluded from the backup job.



Step 4. Specify Backup Job Settings

At the **Backup Destination** step of the wizard, do the following:

1. In the **Backup repository** drop-down list, select a backup repository where you want to store backups.

For a backup repository to be displayed in the list of the available repositories, it must be added to the backup infrastructure, and the backup appliance must have access to the repository.

NOTE

You can back up oVirt VMs to object storage repositories. However, it is recommended that you use the backup appliance as a gateway server to transfer backed -up data. To do that, enable SSH access on the backup appliance and add the appliance as a Linux server to the backup infrastructure. Then, edit your object storage repository configuration to choose the **Through gateway server** connection type and select the appliance. For more information on object storage repository configuration, see the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Adding Object Storage Repositories.

- 2. In the **Retention policy** section, choose a retention policy that Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV will apply to backups created by the job:
 - Select *days* if you want to keep restore points in a backup chain for the allowed period of time. If a
 restore point is older than the specified limit, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV removes it from the
 chain.
 - Select *restore points* if you want a backup chain to contain only the allowed number of restore points. If the number of allowed restore points is exceeded, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV removes the earliest restore point from the chain.

When the restore point limit is exceeded, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV removes the earliest restore point from the chain. For more information, see section Retention Policy.

If the UUID of a VM changes (for example, if the VM was migrated to another cluster), Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV will be unable to continue the backup chain for this VM. After you re-add the VM to the backup job, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV will start a new backup chain for it. However, you will still be able to perform restore operations using backups from the old backup chain.

IMPORTANT

If you use hardened repositories to store oVirt VM backups, you must consider the following requirements:

- Active full backups must be scheduled in the backup job settings.
- The backup job retention period must be longer than the backup repository immutability period.

For example, if the backup repository immutability period is set to 25 days, you can configure a one-month retention period: specify 4 as the number of restore points, schedule one backup per week and schedule active full backup to run on the last day of the month.

To help you implement a comprehensive backup strategy, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV allows you to enable long-term retention policy for backups and to configure backup job advanced settings (such as backup maintenance, health check, active and synthetic full backups).

New Backup Job	×
Storage Specify processing p this job and customi	proxy server to be used for source data retrieval, backup repository to store the backup files produced by ize advanced job settings if required.
Name	Backup repository:
	Default Backup Repository 🗸 🗸
Virtual Machines	62.7 GB free of 129 GB
Storage	Retention policy: 7 🗘 days 🗸 🌗
Schedule	Keep certain full backups longer for archival purposes Configure
Summary	GFS retention policy is not configured
	Advanced job settings include backup mode, compression and deduplication, block size, notification settings, automated post-job activity and other settings. Advanced
	< Previous Next > Finish Cancel

Configuring GFS Policy Schedules

Grandfather-Father-Son (GFS) policy allows you to leverage full backups for long-term retentions instead of creating a new full backup every time. The mechanism simplifies the backup schedule and optimizes the backup performance.

Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV re-uses full backups created according to the backup job schedule to achieve the desired retention for a GFS policy schedule (weekly, monthly and yearly). Each full backup is marked with a flag of a specific GFS policy schedule type: the (W) flag is used to mark full backups for the weekly schedule, (M) — monthly, and (Y) — yearly. Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV uses these flags to control the retention period for the created full backups. Once a flag of a GFS policy schedule is assigned to a full backup, this full backup can no longer be removed — it is kept for the period defined in the retention settings. When the specified retention period is over, the flag is unassigned from the full backup. If the full backup does not have any other flags assigned, it is removed according to the short-term retention policy settings. For more information on the GFS flag assignment and removal, see Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Long-Term Retention Policy (GFS).

To configure a GFS policy schedule, select the **Keep certain full backups longer for archival purposes** check box and click **Configure**. Then specify the following options in the **Configure GFS** window:

- Keep weekly full backups Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV will keep a full backup created within a week or on the specific day for a number of weeks.
- Keep monthly full backups Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV will keep a full backup created during the specific week for a number of months.
- Keep yearly full backups Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV will keep a full backup created in the specific month for a number of years.

After you configure the GFS retention policy settings, schedule active full or synthetic full backups. Otherwise, no new full backups will be automatically produced, and Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV will be unable to leverage them for long-term retentions.

NOTE

If you choose an object storage repository to store backups produced by the backup job, you cannot enable synthetic full backups. However, if you configure a GFS policy, synthetic backups will be automatically created according to the specified GFS schedule and marked with an appropriate GFS flag.

New Backup Job	×
Storage Specify processing p this job and customi	roxy server to be used for source data retrieval, backup repository to store the backup files produced by ze advanced job settings if required.
Name	Backup repository:
Virtual Machines	Default Backup Repository
-	62.7 GB free of 129 GB
Storage	Retention policy: 7 🗘 days 🗸 🌖
Schedule	✓ Keep certair Configure GFS ×
Summary	GFS retentic V Keep weekly full backups for: 3 0
	If multiple full backups exist, use the one from: Friday 🗸
	✓ Keep monthly full backups for: 6 🗘 months
	Use weekly full backup from the following week of a month: Second 🗸
	✓ Keep yearly full backups for: 2 ♀ ♀ years
	Use monthly full backup from the following month: December 🗸
	Advanced job s OK Cancel Size, notification
	< Previous Next > Finish Cancel

Configuring Advanced Settings

To configure backup job advanced settings, do the following:

- 1. Click **Advanced**.
- 2. To schedule synthetic full backups, on the Backup tab of the Advanced settings window, select the Create synthetic full backups periodically check box, click Configure and choose whether you want to create synthetic full backups on specific days every week or on specific days of specific months.

IMPORTANT

- Synthetic full backups cannot be scheduled if an object storage repository is selected as the target location for backups.
- Schedule synthetic full backups to run on days when the backup job is scheduled. Otherwise, no synthetic full backup will be created.
3. To schedule active full backups, on the Backup tab of the Advanced settings window, select the Create active full backups periodically check box, click Configure and choose whether you want to create active full backups on specific days every week or on specific days of specific months.

Alternatively, you can create active full backups manually when needed. For more information, see Creating Active Full Backup.

IMPORTANT

Do not schedule synthetic and active full backups to run at the same time. Due to technical limitations, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV will be unable to create synthetic full backups according to the specified schedule.

4. To instruct Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV to periodically perform a health check for backups created by the backup job, on the Maintenance tab of the Advanced settings window, select the Perform backup files health check (detects and auto-heals corruption) check box, click Configure and specify a schedule for the health check to run.

IMPORTANT

- It is recommended that the backup and health check schedules configured for the job do not overlap to avoid data access issues.
- If you have selected an off-premise cloud object storage repository as the target location for backups at step 4, it is recommended that a helper appliance is configured in the repository settings. Otherwise, additional data transfer costs may occur.

5. To configure retention settings for backups of VMs that are no longer processed by the backup job, on the Maintenance tab of the Advanced settings window, select the Remove deleted items data after check box, and specify the number of days during which Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV will keep backups of VMs excluded from the job.

	Advanced Settings ×	
New Backup Job	Backup Maintenance	×
Storage Specify proce this job and o	Synthetic full backup Create synthetic full backups periodically on: Saturday Configure	files produced by
Name Virtual Machines	Create active full backups periodically on: Saturday Configure	~
Storage Schedule	Schedule Settings X Schedule:	Configure
Summary	Weekly: On these days Saturday	
	OK Cancel	
		Advanced
	OK Cancel	Cancel

How Health Check Works

When Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV saves a new backup restore point to a backup repository, it calculates CRC values for metadata in the backup chain and saves these values to the chain metadata, together with the instance data. When performing a health check, Veeam Backup & Replication verifies the availability of data blocks and uses the saved values to ensure that the restore points being verified are consistent.

On the day scheduled for a health check to run, Veeam Backup & Replication starts a new health check session. For each restore point in the standard backup chain, Veeam Backup & Replication calculates CRC values for backup metadata and compares them to the CRC values that were previously saved to the restore point. Veeam Backup & Replication also checks whether data blocks that are required to rebuild the restore point are available.

If Veeam Backup & Replication does not detect data inconsistency, the health check session completes successfully. Otherwise, the session completes with an error. Depending on the detected data inconsistency, Veeam Backup & Replication performs the following operations:

• If the health check detects corrupted metadata in a full or incremental restore point, Veeam Backup & Replication marks the backup chain as corrupted in the configuration database. During the next backup job session, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV copies the full instance image, creates a full restore point in the backup repository and starts a new backup chain in the backup repository.

• If the health check detects corrupted disk blocks in a full or an incremental restore point, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV marks the restore point that includes the corrupted data blocks and all subsequent incremental restore points as incomplete in the configuration database. During the next backup job session, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV copies not only those data blocks that have changed since the previous backup session but also data blocks that have been corrupted, and saves these data blocks to the latest restore point that has been created during the current session.

Step 5. Define Job Schedule

At the **Schedule** step of the wizard, you can instruct Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV to start the backup job automatically according to a specific backup schedule. The backup schedule defines how often data of the VMs added to the backup job will be backed up.

Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV allows you to create schedules of the following types:

- **Daily at this time** the backup job will create restore points at a specific time on specific days.
- Monthly at this time the backup job will create restore points once a month on a specific day.
- **Periodically every** the backup job will create restore points repeatedly with a specific time interval every day.

TIP

You can instruct Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV to run the backup job again if it fails on the first try. To do that, select the **Retry failed items processing** check box, and specify the maximum number of attempts to run the backup job and the time interval between retries. When retrying backup jobs, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV processes only those VMs that failed to be backed up during the previous attempt.

New Backup Job							×
Schedule Specify the job sched	duling options. If you do not se	t the schedul	e, th	e job will need t	o be controlled r	manually.	
Name	 Run the job automatically 	,					
Virtual Machines	Daily at this time:	10:00 PM	\$	Everyday		~	Days
Virtual Machines	O Monthly at this time:	10:00 PM	$\hat{}$	Fourth 🗸	Saturday	~	Months
Storage	O Periodically every:	1	~	Hours			~
Schedule	Automatic retry						
Summary	✓ Retry failed items pro Wait before each retry	cessing: / attempt for:	3	times	5		
			< Pr	evious Ap	o ply Fi	nish	Cancel

Step 6. Finish Working with Wizard

At the **Summary** step of the wizard, review summary information and click **Finish**. As soon as Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV starts the job, the backup progress will be displayed in the working area when you navigate to **Jobs** > **Backups** in the inventory pane of the **Home** view.

TIP

If you want to start the job immediately, select the **Run the job when I click Finish** check box and then click **Finish**.

New Backup Job		×
Summary You can copy the cor	figuration information below for future reference.	
Name Virtual Machines Storage Schedule Summary	Summary: Name: FileServer Backup Target repository: Default Backup Repository Type: Backup Source items: File_Server	
	Run the job when I click Finish <pre></pre>	

Editing Backup Job Settings

For each backup job, you can modify settings configured while creating the job.

- 1. In the Veeam Backup & Replication console, open the Home view.
- 2. In the inventory pane, select Jobs.
- 3. In the working area, select the job and click **Edit** on the ribbon, or right-click the job and select **Edit**.
- 4. Complete the **Edit Job** wizard:
 - a. To provide a new name and description for the job, follow the instructions provided in section Creating Backup Jobs (step 2).
 - b. To edit the backup scope, follow the instructions provided in section Creating Backup Jobs (step 3).
 - c. To change the backup repository where backups are stored, to configure backup job retention settings, to schedule active and synthetic full backups, and to configure health checks, follow the instructions provided in section Creating Backup Jobs (step 4).
 - d. To modify the job schedule and configure automatic retry settings, follow the instructions provided in section Creating Backup Jobs (step 5).

阁 Job Tools		rh	/backupsr	v.teci	h.local - Veeam Bac	kup and R	eplication			- 🗆 ×
Start Stop Retry Active Statistics Report Edit	Clone Disable Delete									Veeam Al Online Assistant
Home	Q Type in an object r	name to search for			×					
a Sobs	Name	Туре 🕇		O	Status	Last R	Last Result	Next Run	Target	Description
v ∰ Backups ▲ Disk Disk a ∰ Last 24 Hours B Success	ElieServer Backup	oVirt KVM Ba oVirt KVM Ba oVirt KVM Ba	ckup ckup ckup		Start Stop Retry Active full Statistics Report Disable Clone Delete	81 minu 10 minu 18 minu	Success Success Success	3/10/2024 10:00 PM 3/10/2024 10:00 PM 3/10/2024 10:00 PM	Default Backup Repository Default Backup Repository Default Backup Repository	Daily server back Backup of the Lf Server templates
	SUMMARY	02:02	DATA	() ()	Edit		STATUS	1 🔊	THROUGHPUT (ALL TIN	1E) Speed: 0 KB/s
A Home	Processing rate:	3 KB/s	Read:	seu:	19 KB		Warnings:	0		
Inventory	Bottleneck:	Source	Transf	erred:	64 B (30	4x)	Errors:	0		
Backup Infrastructure	Name	Status	Action							Duration
 Storage Infrastructure Tape Infrastructure Files History 	Ten File_Server	♥ Success	 File_ File_ File_ File_ App Rete Loai Prin Lob 	_Serve _Serve _Serve olying entior d: Sou nary b finish	er : Disk backup cor er : Finalizing backu er : Backup finished retention policy n policy has been aj urce 92% > Proxy C pottleneck: Source	nplete 2/2 I pplied succ % > Netwo	'ka209-2_2' cessfully ork 0% > Target	0%		00:01
1 job selected		Connect	ed to: rhvi	backı	upsrv.tech.local (-8	hours)	Build: 12.1.0.2	131 Enterprise Plus Ec	dition Evaluation: 296 da	ys remaining

e. At the **Summary** step of the wizard, review configuration information and click **Finish**.

Starting and Stopping Backup Jobs

You can start a backup job manually, for example, if you want to create an additional restore point and do not want to modify the configured job schedule. You can also stop a backup job manually if processing of an oVirt VM is about to take too long, and you do not want the job to have an impact on the production environment during business hours. When you stop a running job, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV creates a new restore point only for those VMs that have already been processed by the time you stop the job.

To start or stop a backup job, do the following:

- 1. Open the **Home** view.
- 2. In the inventory pane, select **Jobs**.
- 3. In the working area, select the job and click **Start** or **Stop** on the ribbon, or right-click the job and select **Start** or **Stop**.



Analyzing Performance Bottlenecks

As any backup application handles a great amount of data, it is important to make sure the data flow is efficient and all resources engaged in the backup process are optimally used. For backup jobs, Veeam provides advanced statistics about the data flow efficiency and lets you identify bottlenecks at the following stages of the data transmission process:

- 1. Reading VM data blocks from the source.
- 2. Processing VM data on a worker.
- 3. Transporting data over the network.
- 4. Writing data to the target.



While evaluating the data transmission process, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV leverages the Veeam Backup & Replication functionality to analyze performance of all the data flow components:

- **Source** the source disk reader component responsible for retrieving data from the source node.
- **Proxy** the worker component responsible for processing VM data.
- **Network** the network queue writer component responsible for getting processed VM data from the worker and sending it over the network to the Target (directly or through the Gateway Server).
- **Target** the gateway server component responsible for processing VM data, or the target disk writer component responsible for storing data in the backup repository.

To see the bottleneck statistics for a job or a specific VM processed by the job, do the following:

- 1. In the Veeam Backup & Replication console, open the Home view.
- 2. In the inventory pane, select **Jobs**.
- 3. In the working area, select a backup job for which you want to see the bottleneck statistics and click **Statistics** on the ribbon, or right-click the job and select **Statistics**.
- 4. In the job session details window, check the **Bottleneck** field in the **SUMMARY** column.

TIP

To see the bottleneck statistics for a specific VM, click **Show Details**, select the VM name in the **Name** column and check the **Load** record in the **Action** column. To learn how to analyze the statistics, see Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Performance Bottlenecks.



Cloning Backup Jobs

You can create a new job by cloning an existing one. Job cloning allows you to create an exact copy of any job with the same job settings.

To clone a job, do the following:

- 1. In the Veeam Backup & Replication console, open the Home view.
- 2. In the inventory pane, select Jobs.
- 3. In the working area, select the job and click **Clone** on the ribbon, or right-click the job and select **Clone**.

The name of the cloned job is formed by the following rule: *<job_name_clone1>*, where *job_name* is the name of the original job and *clone1* is a suffix added to the original job name. If you clone the same job again, the number in the name will be incremented, for example, *job_name_clone2, job_name_clone3* and so on. To change the name of a cloned job, edit the job as described in section Editing Job Settings.

NOTE

If the original job is scheduled to run automatically, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV disables the cloned job. To enable the cloned job, select it in the job list and click **Enable**.



Enabling and Disabling Backup Jobs

By default, all created backup jobs run according to the specified schedules. However, you can temporarily disable a job so that it does not run automatically. You will still be able to enable the disabled job at any time you need.

To enable or disable a backup job, do the following:

- 1. In the Veeam Backup & Replication console, open the **Home** view.
- 2. In the inventory pane, select Jobs.
- 3. In the working area, select the job and click **Enable** or **Disable** on the ribbon, or right-click the job and select **Enable** or **Disable**.



Deleting Backup Jobs

You can permanently delete a backup job from the Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV configuration database if you no longer need it. When you delete a job, backups created by this job are displayed under the **Backups** > **Disk (Orphaned)** node in the **Home** view of the Veeam Backup & Replication console. If you want to delete backup files as well, follow the instructions provided in section **Deleting Backups**.

To delete a backup job, do the following:

- 1. In the Veeam Backup & Replication console, open the Home view.
- 2. In the inventory pane, select Jobs.
- 3. In the working area, select the job and click **Delete** on the ribbon, or right-click the job and select **Delete**.



Creating Active Full Backups

You can manually create an active full backup for all VMs added to a backup job:

- 1. In the Veeam Backup & Replication console, open the Home view.
- 2. In the inventory pane, select Jobs.
- 3. In the working area, select the job and click **Active Full** on the ribbon, or right-click the job and select **Active full**.

TIP

To create active full backup automatically according to a specific schedule, configure backup job settings as described in section Creating Backup Jobs (step 4).



Creating VeeamZIP Backups

You can back up one or multiple oVirt VMs without configuring backup jobs. To do that, you can leverage the VeeamZIP feature — it can be helpful, for example, if you want to create backups for VMs immediately, archive VMs before decommissioning and so on. VeeamZIP produces a full backup that acts as an independent restore point. You can store the backup in a repository added to the backup infrastructure, in a local folder on the backup server or in a network share.

NOTES

- You cannot store VeeamZIP backups in Veeam Cloud Connect repositories.
- Veeam Backup & Replication does not apply network traffic throttling rules to VeeamZIP backup sessions. For more information, see the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Configuring Network Traffic Rules.

To create a VeeamZIP backup, do the following:

- 1. In the Veeam Backup & Replication console, open the Inventory view.
- 2. In the inventory pane, select Virtual Infrastructure > oVirt KVM.
- 3. In the working area, select the VM that you want to back up and click **VeeamZIP** on the ribbon, or rightclick the VM and select **VeeamZIP**.
- 4. Select the destination where the VeeamZIP backup will be stored.

TIP

You cannot specify an SMB share that requires authentication as a local or shared folder. However, you can add the SMB share to the backup infrastructure and specify it as backup repository.

The created VeeamZIP backup will be displayed under the **Backups** > **Disk (Exported)** node in the **Home** view of the Veeam Backup & Replication console.

记 VM Tools	rhvbackupsrv.tech.local - Veeam Backup and Replication	- = ×
VecamZIP Add to Backup Job Attions		Veeam Al Online Assistant
Inventory		
Malware Detection Malware Detection Mark Constructure Mark Constru	Name T Used Size Provisioned Size Guest OS	
Home		
Inventory		
Backup Infrastructure		
Storage Infrastructure		
Tape Infrastructure		
Files		
History		
	2	

Managing Backups

Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV stores information on all protected oVirt VMs in the configuration database. Even if a VM is no longer protected by any configured backup job and even if the VM no longer exists in the oVirt KVM environment, records about created backups will not be deleted from the database until Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV automatically removes all restore points associated with this VM according to the retention settings saved in the backup metadata. You can manage oVirt VM backups as long as their records are present in the configuration database.

Viewing Backup Properties

After a backup job successfully creates a backup of an oVirt VM according to the specified schedule, or after you create an active full backup of a VM manually, the backup is displayed under the **Backups** node in the **Home** view of the Veeam Backup & Replication console. Each backup is represented with a set of properties, such as:

- **Objects** the names and sizes of backed-up VMs.
- **Restore Points** the date and time of all restore points created for a VM.
- Files the size of processed VM data, the size of backed-up VM data, the ratio of data deduplication and the ratio of data compression.

To view backup properties, do the following:

- 1. In the Veeam Backup & Replication console, open the Home view.
- 2. In the inventory pane, select **Backups**.
- 3. In the working area, right-click the backup and select **Properties**.

記 Backup Tools	rhvbackupsrv.tech.local - Veeam Backup and Replication					
∃• Home Backup		•				
Move Copy Properties Delete Backup Backup from v Backup		Veeam Al Online Assistant				
Home	Q. Type in an object name to search for					
	Job Name 🕇 Backup Properties LMS Daily Backup (Default Backup Repository)	×				
Jobs	Bester points:					
Backups	Exist Control of					
∠ Disk Last 24 Hours	Name Original Size 3/10/2024 10:29:10 AM Increment OK					
🔯 Success	🔚 LMS_Server 64.1 GB 3/10/2024 9:51:40 AM Full OK					
	The Media_Storage 64.1 GB					
	Total rise: 128 GR Restore points: 2					
^	Name † Data Size Backup Size Deduplication Compression Date					
1 Home	Image: Storage Backup_2024-03-10T 68 B 1.54 MB 1.0 x 1.3 x 3/10/2024 10:29:17 AM					
Inventory	😤 Media_Storage Backup_2024-03-10T 64.1 GB 4.93 GB 6.1 x 2.1 x 3/10/2024 9:51:46 AM					
Backup Infrastructure						
Storage Infrastructure						
Tape Infrastructure						
Files	Backup size: 10.2 GB					
History	🖒 Copy path 🙀 Malware 🗸					
*** *		Close				
1 backup selected	Connected to: rhvbackupsrv.tech.local (-8 hours) Build: 12.1.0.2131 Enterprise Plus Edition Evaluation: 296 (days remaining				

Verifying Backups

To perform an integrity check of oVirt VM backups, Veeam Backup & Replication offers the SureBackup technology that allows you to ensure that the created restore points are not corrupted. For backups of Windows VMs, you can also scan the restore points with antivirus software installed on the backup server, and run YARA rules to detect malware and sensitive data.

To create a SureBackup job, do the following:

- 1. In the Veeam Backup & Replication console, open the **Home** view.
- 2. In the inventory pane, select **Jobs > Backup** and click **SureBackup Job** on the ribbon.
- 3. At the Name step of the New SureBackup Job wizard, select the Backup verification and content scan only verification mode, and then complete the wizard as described in the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Creating SureBackup Jobs.

If any of the verification checks fail for a restore point, Veeam Backup & Replication will mark both this restore point and all subsequent points in the backup chain as *Infected*. To learn how to manage infected restore points, see Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Managing Malware Status.

TIP

You can scan backups of Windows VMs manually on demand, without creating a SureBackup job. To learn how to do that, see the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Scan Backup.

跑		rhvb	ackupsrv.tech.loc	al - Veeam Backup and	Replication			- ¤ ×
∃• Home View								0
Backup Replication CDP Job × Job × Policy Primary Jobs	py SureBackup Job Idary Jobs Restor	re Import Export Backup Backup G	Security & Compliance					Veeam Al Online Assistant
Home	New SureBackup J Creates a new Sure	Job reBackup job.	search for		×			
🔺 🐁 Jobs	Name 🕇		Туре	Objects	Status L	ast R Last Result	t Next Run	Target De
🚛 Backup	🔚 FileSer	erver Backup	oVirt KVM Back	tup 1	Stopped 1	14 minu Success	3/10/2024 10:00 PM	M Default Backup Repository Da
 ▲ Backups ▲ Disk ▲ Disk (Imported) ▲ Bisk (Imported) ▲ Success 	SUMMAR	Daily Backup אין אין אין אין אין אין אין אין אין אין	oVirt KVM Back	DATA	6.1.GR (100%)	STATUS	3/10/2024 10:00 PA	4 Default Backup Repository Re
A Home	Processin	ng rate: 10	14 MB/s	Read:	6.1 GB	Warnings:	0	
Inventory	Bottlenec	sk: N	etwork	Transferred:	2.8 GB (2.2x)	Errors:	0	
Backup Infrastructure	Name		Status	Action				Duration
Storage Infrastructure Tape Infrastructure Tiles	File_S	erver (Success	 File_Server : Disk bit File_Server : Finaliz File_Server : Backup Applying retention Retention policy bit 	ackup complete 2/ ing backup o finished policy as been applied su	/2 'ka209-2_2' ccessfully		00:00
History	35			 Load: Source 15% Primary bottleneck Lob finished at 2 (1) 	> Proxy 31% > Ne : Network	etwork 91% > larget 3	176	
1 job selected			Conn <u>ecte</u>	d to: rhvbackups <u>rv.tec</u>	n.local (-8 hou <u>rs)</u>	Build: 12.1.0.2131	Enterprise Plus Edition	Evaluation: 296 days remaining

Exporting Backups

Exporting backups allows you to synthesize a complete and independent full backup file using restore points located in your backup repositories. That is, you can transform any backup chain into a standalone full backup file and save it to a repository or folder.

To export a backup, do the following:

- 1. In the Veeam Backup & Replication console, open the **Home** view.
- 2. In the inventory pane, select **Backups**.
- 3. In the working area, expand the job that created the backup, right-click a VM for which you want to synthesize a full backup file, and select **Export Backup**.
- 4. Complete the **New Export** wizard as described in the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Performing Export.

Once the export operation completes, the exported backup will be displayed under the **Backups > Disk** (Exported) node in the Home view of the Veeam Backup & Replication console.

Backup Tools	rhvba	rhvbackupsrv.tech.local - Veeam Backup and Replication -					
E → Home Backup				?			
Instant Export Publish Guest Files Guest Files Applic Recovery Disks Disks (Windows) (Other) term Restore	ation s + Restore to Cloud	Scan Delete Properties Actions Actions Restore to oVirt KV	/M	Veeam Al Online Assistant			
Home	Q Type in an object name to search for	×					
 Success Success 	Job Name ↑	Creation Time Restor 3/10/2024 9:47 AM Restore store st	Pre Points Repository Default Backup Repositor Default Backup Repositor Default Backup Repositor	y oVirt KVM y oVirt KVM y oVirt KVM			
A Home		Delete from disk	_				
Inventory	l	Properties					
Backup Infrastructure							
Storage Infrastructure							
Tape Infrastructure							
Files							
History							
1 backup selected	Connec	ted to: rhvbackupsrv.tech.local (-8 hours)	Build: 12.1.0.2131 Enterprise Plus Edition	Evaluation: 296 days remaining			

Copying Backups

With backup copy, you can create several instances of a backup and copy them to secondary (target) backup repositories for long-term storage. Target backup repositories can be located in the same site as the source backup repository or can be deployed off-site. Since the backup copy has the same format as the original backup, you can restore VM data directly from the backup copy in case a disaster strikes. For more information on the backup copy functionality, see the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Backup Copy.

To copy backups to a secondary backup repository, do the following:

- 1. In the Veeam Backup & Replication console, open the **Home** view.
- 2. In the inventory pane, select Jobs > Backup and click Backup Copy on the ribbon.
- 3. Create a backup copy job as described in the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Creating Backup Copy Jobs.

Note that for backup copies, you can also use Veeam Cloud Connect repositories if a service provider is added to Veeam Backup & Replication.

TIP

Alternatively, you can create a copy of a backup without configuring a job as described in the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Copying Backups.



Copying Backups to Tapes

You can create archives of oVirt VM backups and copy them to tapes for long-term storage. Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV allows you to manage tape archives the same way you manage backups in backup repositories. However, it usually takes more time to access archived data on tapes than to access backed -up data in repositories. For more information on tapes, see the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Tape Devices Support.

To archive oVirt VM backups to tape, do the following:

- 1. Configure the tape infrastructure:
 - a. Connect tape devices as described in the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Tape Devices Deployment.
 - b. Perform initial configuration of the tape infrastructure as described in the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Getting Started with Tapes (steps 1–3).
- 2. Create a backup to tape job as described in the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Creating Backup to Tape Jobs.

NOTE

You cannot restore oVirt VMs directly from tapes. To restore an oVirt VM, you must first restore its backups to a repository as described in the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Backup Restore from Tape to Repository.



Deleting Backups

By default, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV maintains backups stored in backup repositories according to retention policy settings saved in the backup metadata. If Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV detects that the number of restore points in the backup chain exceeds the allowed number, it automatically removes obsolete backups. You can also delete backup files from backup repositories manually if you no longer need them.

To delete backup files created for an oVirt VM, do the following:

- 1. In the Veeam Backup & Replication console, open the Home view.
- 2. In the inventory pane of the Home view, select Backups.
- 3. In the working area, expand the job that created the backup, right-click the VM name and select **Delete from disk**.

NOTE

If 4-eyes authorization is enabled in Veeam Backup & Replication, deleting backup files will require additional approval from another user with the *Veeam Backup Administrator* role.

Backup Tools	rhvbackupsrv.tech.local - Veeam Backup and Replication	– – ×
E▼ Home Backup		0
Instant Export Publish Guest Files Guest Files Applic Recovery Disks Disks (Windows) (Other) Restore	ation Amazon Microsoft Google is * EC2 Azure lass CE Restore to Cloud Restore to Cloud R	Veeam Al Online Assistant
Home	Q. Type in an object name to search for	
 Intersection of the sector of	Job Name 1 Creation Time Restore Points 3/10/2024 9:47 AM Server Backup Jolic Server MS Daily Backup Server Templates Restore extra the server of Google CE Restore to Microsoft Azure Restore to Microsoft Azure Restore entire VM to oVirt KVM Restore entire VM to oVirt KVM Export Content as virtual disks Publish disks Export backup San backup.	Repository Platform Default Backup Repository oVirt KVM Default Backup Repository oVirt KVM Default Backup Repository oVirt KVM
A Home	Delete from disk	
Inventory	Properties	
Backup Infrastructure		
Storage Infrastructure		
Tape Infrastructure		
Files		
History		
» *		
1 backup selected	Connected to: rhvbackupsrv.tech.local (-8 hours) Build: 12.1.0	.2131 Enterprise Plus Edition Evaluation: 296 days remaining

Performing Restore

In various disaster recovery scenarios, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV allows you to perform the following operations using backed-up data:

- Entire VM restore recover oVirt VMs to the original location or to a new location.
- VM disk restore recover a specific VM disk and attach it to the original VM or to another VM.
- Instant VM recovery instantly start an oVirt VM directly from a backup.
- Disk publishing mount specific disks of a backed-up oVirt VMs to any server added to the backup infrastructure.
- File-level restore recover individual VM guest OS files and folders.
- Application items restore restore applications, such as Microsoft Active Directory, Microsoft Exchange, Microsoft SharePoint, and Microsoft SQL Server.
- VM disk export restore VM disks and convert them to disks of the VMDK, VHD or VHDX format.
- Restore to AWS restore oVirt VMs to Amazon Web Services as EC2 instances.
- Restore to Microsoft Azure restore oVirt VMs to Microsoft Azure as Azure VMs.
- Restore to Google Cloud restore oVirt VMs to Google Cloud as VM instances.

You can restore VM data to the most recent state or to any available restore point.

Performing VM Restore

In case of a disaster, you can restore an entire oVirt VM from a backup. Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV allows you to restore one or more VMs at a time, to the original location or to a new location.

VM restore is supported only for backups stored in backup repositories, object storage repositories, Veeam Cloud Connect repositories and on the performance, capacity and archive tier of a scale-out backup repository (except for backups stored in the archive tier that consists of the Amazon S3 Glacier Instant Retrieval extent).

NOTE

You cannot restore VMs from backups stored in external repositories and on tapes. However, you can copy backups to a supported repository and then use them to restore VMs.

How VM Restore Works

During the VM restore process, the following steps are performed:

1. The Veeam Backup & Replication console sends the restore session configuration data to the backup appliance.

If multiple VMs are added to the restore session, these VMs are processed in parallel.

- 2. [This step applies only if you perform restore to the original location and if the source VM is still present in the location] The backup appliance powers off the source VM and removes it from the oVirt KVM environment.
- 3. The backup appliance launches a worker.
- 4. The worker connects to the Virtualization manager over REST API and creates a VM in the target location.
- 5. The worker creates empty virtual disks in the target location. The number of empty disks equals the number of disks attached to the source VM.
- 6. The worker connects to the backup repository and restores backed -up data to the empty disks.

If multiple disks are attached to the source VM, the worker restores these disks sequentially, one disk at a time.

7. The worker attaches the created disks with the restored data to the VM.

How to Perform VM Restore

To restore a protected VM, do the following:

- 1. Launch the Full VM Restore to oVirt KVM wizard.
- 2. Select a restore point.
- 3. Choose a restore mode.
- 4. Specify a target cluster.
- 5. Select a storage domain where VM virtual disks will be stored.
- 6. Specify a name for the restored VM.
- 7. Configure network settings.

- 8. Specify a restore reason.
- 9. Verify restore settings.

Step 1. Launch Full VM Restore to oVirt KVM Wizard

To launch the Full VM Restore to oVirt KVM wizard, do the following:

- 1. In the Veeam Backup & Replication console, open the Home view.
- 2. In the inventory pane, select **Backups**.
- 3. In the working area, expand the necessary backup, select the VM that you want to restore and click **Entire** VM on the ribbon, or right-click the VM and select **Restore entire oVirt KVM**.



Step 2. Select Restore Point

At the **Virtual Machines** step of the wizard, select a restore point that will be used to restore the selected VM. By default, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV uses the most recent valid restore point. However, you can restore the VM data to an earlier state.

To select a restore point, do the following:

- 1. Select the VM.
- 2. Click Point.
- 3. In the Restore Points window, select the necessary restore point and click OK.

To help you choose a restore point, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV provides the following information on each available restore point:

- $\circ~$ Job the name of the backup job that created the restore point and the date when the restore point was created.
- **Type** the type of the restore point.
- Location the repository where the restore point is stored.

Full VM R	estore to oVirt KVM			\times
	Restore Points			×
	Available restore points for File_Server:			
_	dof	Туре	Location	
Virtual N	4 💾 Fileserver Backup			
Restore	 less than a day ago (10:00 PM Saturday 3 1 day ago (10:00 PM Friday 3/8/2024) 	Full (R) Increment (R)	Default Backup Repository Default Backup Repository	
Reason	I day ago (10:06 AM Friday 3/8/2024)	Full (R)	Default Backup Repository	ld
Reason				nt
Summar				nove
			OK Cancel	
		< Previous	Next > Finish	Cancel

Step 3. Choose Restore Mode

At the **Restore Mode** step of the wizard, choose whether you want to restore the selected VM to the original or to a custom location. You can also choose whether you want the recovered VM to have the same tags as the original VM.

TIP

You can instruct Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV to restore disks attached to the recovered VM in the QCOW2 format. This will increase speed and efficiency of incremental backups further created for the VM.

Full VM Restore to oVirt KVM	×
Restore Mode Specify whether sele	ected VMs should be restored back to the original location, or to a new location or with different settings.
Virtual Machines Restore Mode	Restore to the original location Quickly initiate the restore of selected VM to its original location, with the original name and settings. This option minimizes the chance of user input error.
Cluster Storage Domain	Restore to a new location, or with different settings Customize the restored VM location, and change its settings. The wizard will automatically populate all controls with the original VM settings as the defaults.
Name	
Network	
Reason	
Summary	
	 Restore VM tags Select this option to restore VM tags that were assigned to the VM when backup was taken.
	Restore all VM disks to QCOW2 format Select this option to restore all VM disks to QCOW2 format.
	< Previous Next > Finish Cancel

Step 4. Specify Target Cluster

[This step applies only if you have selected the **Restore to a new location, or with different settings** option at the **Restore Mode** step of the wizard]

At the **Cluster** step of the wizard, choose the cluster to which the recovered VM will belong.

For a cluster to be displayed in the list of the available clusters, it must be added to the virtual environment as described in Red Hat Virtualization documentation or Oracle Linux Virtualization Manager documentation.

Full VM Restore to oVirt KVM					×
Cluster By default, original cl clicking Cluster. Use	uster is selected as restore des multi-select (Ctrl-click and Shif	stination for each VN t-click) to select mul	/l. You can change clust Itiple VMs at once.	er by selecting desired VM	l and
Virtual Machines	VM location:				
Partera Mada	Name		Cluster		
Restore Mode	File_Server		🚟 Default		
Cluster					
Storage Domain					
Name					
Network					
Reason					
Summary					
	Select multiple VMs and click	c Cluster to apply ch	anges in bulk.	Cluste	r
		< Previ	ious Next >	Finish Cance	el

Step 5. Select Storage Domain

[This step applies only if you have selected the **Restore to a new location, or with different settings** option at the **Restore Mode** step of the wizard]

At the **Storage Domain** step of the wizard, choose the storage domain where virtual disks of the recovered VM will be stored.

For a domain to be displayed in the list of the available domains, it must be configured in the virtual environment as described in Red Hat Virtualization documentation or Oracle Linux Virtualization Manager documentation.



Step 6. Specify VM Name

[This step applies only if you have selected the **Restore to a new location, or with different settings** option at the **Restore Mode** step of the wizard]

At the Name step of the wizard, you can specify a new name for the recovered VM.

Full VM Restore to oVirt KVM			×
Name By default, original Name. Use multi-se	VM name is selected as a name lect (Ctrl-click and Shift-click) to	for each VM. You can change name by selectir o select multiple VMs at once.	ng desired VM and clicking
Virtual Machines	Virtual machines:		
Restore Mode	Name	New name	
Churter	File_Server	File_Server	
Cluster			
Storage Domain			
Name			
Network			
Reason			
Summary			
	Select multiple VMs to appl	v settings change in hulk	Name
	select maniple vivis to appi	y settings change in baik.	Name
		< Previous Next >	Finish Cancel

Step 7. Configure Network Settings

[This step applies only if you have selected the **Restore to a new location, or with different settings** option at the **Restore Mode** step of the wizard]

At the **Network** step of the wizard, choose a network to which the recovered VM will be connected. If you do not want to connect the VM to any virtual network, select the VM and click **Disconnect**.

For a network to be displayed in the list of the available networks, it must be configured in the virtual environment as described in Red Hat Virtualization documentation or Oracle Linux Virtualization Manager documentation.

Full VM Restore to oVirt KVM				×
Network By default, we will co location, specify how	onnect the restored VM to the same virt v networks map between original and n	tual networks as the original VM. ew locations.	lf you are restoring t	o a different
Virtual Machines	Network connections:			
Restore Mode	Source	Target	Cluster	
Cluster	avirtmgmt	📷 ovirtmgmt		
Storage Domain				
Name				
Network				
Reason				
Summary				
	Soloct multiple VMs to apply shares	in hulk	Network	Disconnect
	select multiple vivis to apply changes	s in Duik.	Network	Disconnect
		< Previous Next >	Finish	Cancel

Step 8. Specify Restore Reason

At the **Reason** step of the wizard, specify a reason for restoring the VM. This information will be saved to the session history, and you will be able to reference it later.

Full VM Restore to oVirt KVM	×	<
Reason Type in the reason for reference.	or performing this restore operation. This information will be logged in the restore sessions history for late	r
Virtual Machines	Restore reason:	
Restore Mode	Corrupted disks	
Cluster		
Storage Domain		
Name		
Network		
Reason		
Summary		
	Do not show me this page again	
	< Previous Next > Finish Cancel	

Step 9. Finish Working with Wizard

At the Summary step of the wizard, review summary information and click Finish.

TIP

If you want to start the recovered VM as soon as the restore process completes, select the **Power on target VM after restoring** check box.

Full VM Restore to oVirt KVM		\times
You can copy the cor	figuration information below for future reference.	
Virtual Machines Restore Mode Cluster Storage Domain Name	Summary: Original name: File_Server New name: File_Server Restore point: 3/8/2024 10:06:48 AM Target cluster: Default Storage domain mapping: disk0 -> 189hddnfs1 disk1 -> 189hddnfs1 Network adapter mapping: ovirtmgmt -> ovirtmgmt	
Network Reason		
Summary	✓ Power on target VM after restoring	
	< Previous Next > Finish Cancel	

Performing Disk Restore

In case a disaster strikes, you can restore a disk of an oVirt VM from a backup. Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV allows you to attach the restored disk to the original VM or any other oVirt VM in the oVirt KVM environment.

How Disk Restore Works

During the VM disk restore process, the following steps are performed:

- 1. The Veeam Backup & Replication console sends the restore session configuration data to the backup appliance.
- 2. The backup appliance powers off the target VM.
- 3. The backup appliance launches a worker.
- 4. The worker creates an empty virtual disk in the oVirt KVM environment.
- 5. The worker connects to the backup repository and restores backed-up data to the empty disk.
- 6. [This step applies only if you restore the disk to the original VM and if you choose to replace the existing disk] The worker detaches the original disk from the VM and removes it from the oVirt KVM environment.
- 7. The worker attaches the created disk with the restored data to the target VM.

How to Perform Disk Restore

To restore a disk attached to a protected VM, do the following:

- 1. Launch the Virtual Disk Restore wizard.
- 2. Select a VM.
- 3. Select a restore point.
- 4. Configure mapping settings.
- 5. Specify a reason for the restore.
- 6. Finish working with the wizard.

Step 1. Launch Virtual Disk Restore Wizard

To launch the Virtual Disk Restore wizard, do the following:

- 1. In the Veeam Backup & Replication console, open the Home view.
- 2. In the inventory pane, select **Jobs > Backup**.
- 3. On the ribbon, click **Restore** > oVirt KVM.
- 4. Click Entire machine restore.
- 5. Click **Restore to oVirt KVM**.
- 6. Click Virtual disks restore.

TIP

Alternatively, you can expand the necessary backup in the working area, right-click the VM and select **Restore virtual disks to oVirt KVM**.

闾	rhvbackupsrv.tech.local - Veeam Backup and Replication	– 🗆 🗙
E → Home View		()
Backup Replication CDP Job × Job × Policy × Primary Jobs	Ackup Plan * Pois Plan * Restore Plan * Actions Actions	Veeam Al Online Assistant
Home	Restore × Choose whether you want to restore from a backup or from a snapshot. Image: the store from oVirt KVM backup Performs restore from a backup file.	Target Des 10:00 PM Default Backup Repository Dail 10:00 PM Default Backup Repository Bac
▲ Success Success	Virtual disks restore Restores virtual disks to the existing oVirt KVM virtual machine.	
A Home		
Inventory		
Backup Infrastructure		
Storage Infrastructure		
Tape Infrastructure		
Files		
History	Cancel	
1 job selected	Connected to: rhybackupsry.tech.local (-8 hours) Build: 12.1.0.2131 Enterprise Plu	s Edition Evaluation: 296 days remaining
Step 2. Select Virtual Machine

At the Virtual Machine step of the wizard, expand the backup job tree and select the VM whose virtual disks you want to restore.

Virtual Disk Restore					×
KVM Virtual Machine Select virtual machine	e which disks you want to be n	estored.			
Virtual Machine	Machines: File_Server				
Restore Point Disk Mapping Reason Summary	Job name Job name LMS Daily Backup FileServer Backup File_Server File_Server	Last restore point 3/10/2024 3:13 AM 3/10/2024 9:47 AM less than a day ago (9:47	Objects 2 1	Restore points	Q
		< Previous	Next >	Finish Can	cel

Step 3. Select Restore Point

At the **Restore Point** step of the wizard, select a restore point that will be used to restore data. By default, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV uses the most recent valid restore point. However, you can restore the data to an earlier state.

Virtual Disk Restore		×
KVM Restore Point Select the desired re	store point.	
Virtual Machine	VM name: File_Server	Original host: pdcqa189ovirt.robofish.local
Restore Point	VM size: 64.1 GB	
	Available restore points:	
Disk Mapping	Created	Restore points
Reason	less than a day ago (10:05 AM Sunday 3/10/2	(2024) Increment (R)
Summary	(Iess than a day ago (9:47 AM Sunday 3/10/20	(024) Full (R)
	< Previou	us Next > Finish Cancel

Step 4. Configure Mapping Settings

At the **Disk Mapping** step of the wizard, do the following:

1. Choose a target VM to which you want to attach the restored disks.

By default, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV attaches the restored disks to the original VM. To attach the disks to another VM, click **Choose**.

IMPORTANT

During disk restore, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV turns off the target VM to reconfigure its settings and attach the restored disks. It is recommended that you stop all activities on the target VM till the restore session completes.

2. Select virtual disks to restore.

By default, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV attaches the restored disks to the target VM as new disks. If you want the restored disks to replace the existing disks, or if you want to change the disk bus type and to specify a storage domain for the restored disks, click **Change**.

TIP

You can instruct Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV to restore the disks in the QCOW2 format. This will increase speed and efficiency of incremental backups further created for the VM.

Virtual Disk Restore		×
KVM Disk Mapping Map virtual disks fro	m the backup to virtual devi	Virtual Disk Properties ×
		Domain:
Virtual Machine	Virtual machine name:	189hddnfs1 Choose
	File_Server	Bus type:
Restore Point	Disk mapping:	VIRTIO SCSI 🗸
Disk Mapping	Virtual disk	Destination disk:
Reason	✓ ka209-2_1	New disk 🗸
Summary	 □ ka209-2_2 ☑ Restore all VM disks to Select this option to restore all VM disks to select the select the	Existing device properties Bus Capacity Domain New device properties Bus VIRTIO SCSI Capacity 64.0 GB Domain 189hddnfs1 Virtual disk restore result Virtual disk swill be added to the VM.
		OK Cancel

Step 5. Specify Reason for Restore

At the **Reason** step of the wizard, specify a reason for restoring the disks. This information will be saved to the session history, and you will be able to reference it later.

Virtual Disk Restore	×	(
KVM Type in the reason for reference.	or performing this restore operation. This information will be logged in the restore sessions history for late	r
Virtual Machine	Restore reason:	
Restore Point	Corrupted disks	
Disk Mapping		
Reason		
Summary		
	Do not show me this page again	
	< Previous Next > Finish Cancel	

Step 6. Finish Working with Wizard

At the Summary step of the wizard, review summary information and click Finish.

TIP

If you want to start the recovered VM as soon as the restore process completes, select the **Power on VM after restoring** check box.

Virtual Disk Restore	×
KVM Summary You can copy the cor	nfiguration information below for future reference.
Virtual Machine Restore Point Disk Mapping Reason Summary	Summary: Original VM name: File_Server Restore point: less than a day ago (10:05 AM Sunday 3/10/2024) Target VM name: File_Server Target cluster: pdcqa189ovirt.robofish.local Restore Disks: QCOW2 Disks info: Source file: ka209-2_1 (64.0 GB) Target storage domain: 189hddnfs1 Source file: ka209-2_2 (128 MB) Target storage domain: 189hddnfs1
	< Previous Next > Finish Cancel

Performing Instant VM Recovery

With Instant VM Recovery, you can immediately restore oVirt VMs as VMware vSphere, Microsoft Hyper-V or Nutanix AHV VMs to your production environment by running them directly from their backups. Instant VM Recovery helps you improve recovery time objectives and minimize disruption and downtime of production workloads. For more information on Instant VM Recovery, see the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section VM Recovery.

To perform Instant VM Recovery, do the following:

- 1. In the Veeam Backup & Replication console, open the Home view.
- 2. In the inventory pane, select **Backups**.
- 3. In the working area, right-click the VM you want to restore, and select Instant Recovery.
 - To restore the VM to VMware vSphere, complete the Instant Recovery wizard as described in the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide for VMware vSphere, section Performing Instant VM Recovery of Workloads to VMware vSphere VMs.
 - To restore the VM to Microsoft Hyper-V, complete the Instant Recovery wizard as described in the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide for Microsoft Hyper-V, section Performing Instant VM Recovery of Workloads to Hyper-V VMs.
 - To restore the VM to Nutanix AHV, complete the Instant Recovery wizard as described in the Veeam Backup for Nutanix AHV User Guide, section Performing Instant VM Recovery of Workloads to Nutanix AHV.



Publishing Disks

Veeam Backup & Replication allows you to mount specific disks of backed-up oVirt VMs to any server and to instantly access data in the read-only mode. This can be helpful when you want to copy files and folders as of a point-in-time state to the target server, and perform an antivirus scan of the backed-up data. For more information, see the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Disk Publishing (Data Integration API).

To publish disks of an oVirt VM, do the following:

- 1. In the Veeam Backup & Replication console, open the **Home** view.
- 2. In the inventory pane, select **Backups**.
- 3. In the working area, expand the necessary backup job, right-click the VM that contains disks you want to mount and select **Publish disks**.
- 4. Complete the **Publish Disk** wizard as described in the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Publishing Disks.



Performing File-Level Restore

With guest OS file recovery (file-level restore), you can restore individual guest OS files and folders from oVirt VM backups created with Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV. When restoring files and folders, you do not need to extract the VM image to a staging location or start the VM prior to restore. For more information on VM guest OS file restore, see the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Guest OS File Recovery.

To restore VM guest OS files and folders, do the following:

- 1. In the Veeam Backup & Replication console, open the Home view.
- 2. In the inventory pane, select **Backups**.
- 3. In the working area, expand the necessary backup job, right-click the VM that contains files you want to restore and do the following:
 - If you want to restore files of a Microsoft Windows machine, select Restore guest files > Microsoft Windows and complete the Guest File Restore wizard as described in the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Restoring VM Guest OS Files (FAT, NTFS or ReFS).
 - If you want to restore files of a Linux, Solaris, BSD, Novell Storage Services, Unix or Mac machine, select Restore guest files > Linux and other and complete the Guest File Restore wizard as described in the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Restoring VM Guest OS Files (Multi-OS).



TIP

Alternatively, you can use Veeam Backup Enterprise Manager to restore guest OS files and folders as described in the Veeam Backup Enterprise Manager Guide, section Restoring VM Guest OS Files.

Performing Application Item Restore

With application item restore, you can use Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV backups to restore the following data:

- Microsoft Active Directory objects and containers
- Microsoft Exchange mailboxes, folders and messages
- Microsoft SharePoint sites and lists
- Microsoft SQL Server
- Oracle databases
- PostgreSQL instances and databases residing on Linux VMs

To restore application items from a Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV VM backup, do the following:

- 1. In the Veeam Backup & Replication console, open the **Home** view.
- 2. In the inventory pane, select **Backups**.
- 3. In the working area, expand the necessary backup job, select the VM that contains an application you want to restore.
- 4. Click Application Items on the ribbon and the select the application.
- 5. In the restore wizard, select a restore point that will be used to restore the application, specify a restore reason and click **Browse**.
- 6. In the Veeam Explorer application, perform the steps described in the Veeam Explorers User Guide.

TIP

As an alternative to application item restore, you can also perform file-level restore to recover standalone databases using Veeam Explorers.

		<u></u>
Instant Export Publish Guest Files Guest Files Application Recovery Disks Disks (Other) Restore	perties Virtual VM Disks Restore to o'Virt KVM	Veeam Al Online Assistant
Home Microsoft Exchange search for Microsoft SAL Server Microsoft SQL Server Microsoft	X Restore Points Repository Platform 4 9:47 AM Default Backup Repository oVirt KV 4 9:51 AM Default Backup Repository oVirt KV 4 10:21 AM Default Backup Repository oVirt KV 4 10:21 AM 1 0 1	M M M
Home Inventory Carlo Backup Infrastructure Carlo Storage Infrastructure Carlo Files Carlo Files Carlo Files Carlo Files		

Exporting Disks

Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV allows you to export disks, that is, restore disks from oVirt VM backups and convert them to the VMDK, VHD and VHDX formats. You can save the exported disks to any server added to the backup infrastructure or place the disks on a datastore connected to an ESXi host (for the VMDK disk format only). For more information, see the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Disk Export.

To export disks of an oVirt VM, do the following:

- 1. In the Veeam Backup & Replication console, open the **Home** view.
- 2. In the inventory pane, select **Backups**.
- 3. In the working area, expand the necessary backup job, right-click the VM that contains disks you want to export and select **Export content as virtual disks**.
- 4. Complete the **Export Disk** wizard as described in the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Exporting Disks.

Backup Tools	rhvb	ackupsrv.tech.local - Veeam Backup and Replicati	on	– 🗆 🗙
∃• Home Backup				?
Instant Export Publish Guest Files Guest Files Applic Recovery Disks Disks (Windows) (Other) Restore	ation s * EC2 Azure laas CE Restore to Cloud	Scan Delete Properties Actions Restore to oVirt KVI	м	Veeam Al Online Assistant
Home	Q Type in an object name to search for	×		
▲ 後 Jobs 後程 Backup ▲ 日本24 Hours ● 日本24 Hours	Job Name ↑ ▲ 巻 FileServer Backup — File_Server > 巻 LMS Daily Backup	Creation Time Restor 3/10/2024 9:47 AM Instant recovery Restore guest files	e Points Repository Default Backup Repository Default Backup Repository	Platform v oVirt KVM v oVirt KVM
Success		Restore to Amazon EC2 Restore to Microsoft Azure Restore to Google CE Restore entire VM to oVirt KVM Restore entire VM to oVirt KVM Restore entire VM to average of the state of th		
A Home		Export backup Scan backup Delete from disk		
Inventory		Properties		
Backup Infrastructure				
Storage Infrastructure				
Tape Infrastructure				
Files				
History				
1 backup selected	Connec	cted to: rhvbackupsrv.tech.local (-8 hours) Bi	uild: 12.1.0.2131 Enterprise Plus Edition	Evaluation: 296 days remaining

Performing VM Restore to Amazon Web Services

Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV allows you to restore oVirt VMs to Amazon Web Services (AWS) as EC2 instances. For more information, see the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Restore to Amazon EC2.

To restore a VM to Amazon EC2, do the following:

- 1. In the Veeam Backup & Replication console, open the **Home** view.
- 2. In the inventory pane, select **Backups**.
- 3. In the working area, expand the necessary backup job, right-click the VM that you want to restore and select **Restore to Amazon EC2**.
- 4. Complete the **Restore to Amazon EC2** wizard as described in the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Restoring to Amazon EC2.

Backup Tools	rhvbackupsrv.tech.local - Veeam Backup and Replication	– 🗆 ×
E▼ Home Backup		?
Instant Export Publish Guest Files Guest Files Applic Recovery Disks Disks (Windows) (Other) Restore	Eation s * EC2 Azure lass CE Restore to Cloud Restore to Cloud Actions Restore to oVirt KVM	Veeam Al Online Assistant
Home	Q. Type in an object name to search for	
 Success Success 	Job Name † Creation Time Restore Points Repository	Platform oVirt KVM oVirt KVM
A Home	Image: Second backsprint Image: Second b	
inventory	Properties	
Backup Infrastructure		
Storage Infrastructure		
Tape Infrastructure		
Files		
History		
1 backup selected	Connected to: rhvbackupsrv.tech.local (-8 hours) Build: 12.1.0.2131 Enterprise Plus Edition Evaluat	ion: 296 days remaining

Performing VM Restore to Microsoft Azure

Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV allows you to restore oVirt VMs to Microsoft Azure as Azure VMs. For more information, see the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Restore to Microsoft Azure.

To restore a VM to Microsoft Azure, do the following:

- 1. In the Veeam Backup & Replication console, open the Home view.
- 2. In the inventory pane, select **Backups**.
- 3. In the working area, expand the necessary backup job, right-click the VM that you want to restore and select **Restore to Microsoft Azure**.
- 4. Complete the **Restore to Microsoft Azure** wizard as described in the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Restoring to Microsoft Azure.

Backup Tools	ri	hvbackupsrv.tech.local - Veeam Backup and Replication	- ¤ ×
Ev Home Backup Instant Export Publish Guest Files Guest Files Applie Recovery Disks Disks (Windows) (Other) Iten Restore	ation s × EC2 Azure lass CE Restore to Cloud	t Scan Delete Properties p Backup from Disk Actions Restore to OVINT KVM	Veeam Al Online Assistant
Home	Q Type in an object name to search for	×	
/ 後 Jobs 編 Backup / 論 Backups	Job Name 1 Job Server Backup File_Server United Daily Packup	Creation Time Restore Points 3/10/2024 9:47 AM	s Repository Platform Default Backup Repository oVirt KVM
i usk 4 i i Last 24 Hours i Success		Restore guest files > Restore to Amazon EC2 > Restore to Microsoft Azure > Restore to Google CE >	
		Restore entire VM to oVirt KVM Restore virtual disks to oVirt KVM Export content as virtual disks Publick disks	
		Export backup	
A Home		Delete from disk	
Inventory		Properties	
Backup Infrastructure			
Storage Infrastructure			
Tape Infrastructure			
Files			
1 backup selected	Con	nnected to: rhvbackupsrv.tech.local (-8 hours) Build: 12.1	.1.0.2131 Enterprise Plus Edition Evaluation: 296 days remaining

Performing VM Restore to Google Cloud

Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV allows you to restore oVirt VMs to Google Cloud as VM instances. For more information, see the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Restore to Google Compute Engine.

To restore a VM to Google Cloud, do the following:

- 1. In the Veeam Backup & Replication console, open the Home view.
- 2. In the inventory pane, select **Backups**.
- 3. In the working area, expand the necessary backup job, right-click the VM that you want to restore and select **Restore to Google CE**.
- 4. Complete the **Restore to Google Compute Engine** wizard as described in the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Restoring to Google Compute Engine.

記 Backup Tools		rhvbackupsrv.tech.local - Veeam Backup and Replication	– 🗆 ×
∃• Home Backup			?
Instant Export Publish Guest Files Guest Files Applic Recovery Disks Disks (Windows) (Other) Restore	ation s + Restore to Cloud	cport Scan Delete Properties ackup Backup from Disk Actions Restore to oVirt KVM	Veeam Al Online Assistant
Home	Q Type in an object name to search	for 🗙	
 Image: Support of the sector of th	Job Name ↑	Creation Time Restore Points 3/10/2024 9:47 AM Instant recovery Restore guest files Restore to Amazon EC2 Restore to Amazon EC2 Restore to Google CE Restore to Google CE Restore to Google CE Restore to Soogle CE Restore to Google CE Restore to Google CE Restore to Soogle CE Restore to Google CE Restore to Google CE Restore to Google CE Restore to Boogle CE	Repository Platform Default Backup Repository oVirt KVM
A Home		Delete from disk	
Inventory		Properties	
Cara Backup Infrastructure			
Storage Infrastructure			
Tape Infrastructure			
Files			
History			
*		Connected to shuke downey tech level / 9 hours) Duild, 12:10:221	Enternice Dive Edition Evaluation: 206 days convining

Updating Backup Appliance

Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV allows you to check for new product versions and available package updates, download and install them right from the Veeam Backup & Replication console. It is recommended that you timely install available updates to avoid issues while working with the product. For example, timely installed security updates may help you prevent potential security issues and reduce the risk of compromising sensitive data.

IMPORTANT

Before you install a product update, make sure all backup jobs are stopped and restore tasks are finished. Otherwise, the update process will interrupt the running activities, which may result in data loss.

To download and install available product and package updates, do the following:

- 1. Open the **Backup Infrastructure** view.
- 2. In the inventory pane, select **Backup Proxies**.
- 3. In the working area, select the backup appliance and click **Missing Updates** on the ribbon, or right-click the backup appliance and select **Missing Updates**.
- 4. In the Missing Updates window, select check boxes next to the necessary updates.

You can view detailed information on an update in the **Description** field.

5. Click Install.

The updater may require you to read and accept the Veeam license agreement and the 3rd party components license agreement. If you reject the agreements, you will not be able to continue installation.

6. Select the Allow proxy appliance to perform automatic reboot if required check box and click Install Updates.

Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV will download and install the updates from the internet; it may take several minutes for the installation process to complete.

TIP

If the backup appliance is not connected to the internet, you can instruct Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV to use an HTTP proxy.



Getting Technical Support

If you have any questions or issues with Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV, you can search for a resolution on Veeam R&D Forums or submit a support case in the Veeam Customer Support Portal.

When you submit a support case, it is recommended that you provide the Veeam Customer Support Team with the following information:

- Version information for the product and its infrastructure components
- The error message or an accurate description of the problem you are facing
- Log files

Viewing Product Details

To view the product details, do the following:

- 1. Open the **Backup Infrastructure** view.
- 2. In the inventory pane, select **Backup Proxies**.
- 3. In the working area, select the backup appliance and click **Edit Proxy** on the ribbon, or right-click the backup appliance and select **Properties**.
- 4. In the Edit oVirt KVM Proxy wizard, click Finish.
- 5. Wait for Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV to complete the backup appliance configuration check and click **Next**.

At the **Summary** step of the wizard, the following information will be displayed:

- Virtualization manager hostname or IP address
- Name of the VM running as the backup appliance
- Currently installed version of Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV
- Backup appliance network settings

• Repositories to which the backup appliance has access

Edit oVirt KVM Proxy		×
You can copy the con	figuration information bellow for future reference.	
Virtual Machine	Summary:	
Networks Credentials Access Permissions Apply	Proxy has been updated successfully. Virtualization Manager: pdcqa189ovirt.robofish.local Virtual machine: backup-appliance-rhv Appliance version: 4.0.1.108 Network options: Hostname: backup-appliance-rhv Network adapter: ovirtmgmt	
Summary	IP Address: 172.25.16.236 DNS server: 172.25.16.41 Access permissions: All repositories	
	< Previous Next > Finish Cancel	

Downloading Logs

To download the product logs, do the following:

1. From the main menu of the Veeam Backup & Replication console, select **Help > Support Information**.

2. At the **Scope** step of the **Export Logs** wizard, select the **Export all logs for selected components** option. Then, in the **Managed servers** list, select the backup server and the VM running as the backup appliance.

Complete the wizard as described in the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Exporting Logs.

Server Tools	rhvbacku	ipsrv.tech.local - Veeam Backup and Replication	– 🗆 ×
∃• Home Server			?
Add Edit Remove Server Server Manage Server			Veeam Al Online Assistant
Backup Infrastructure	Q Type in an object name to search for	×	
Backup Proxies Backup Repositories External Repositories Scale-out Repositories WAN Accelerators You Nan Contentiones Contentione Deviders	Name↓ R conter01.tech.log rhvbackupsrv.tech pdcqa387ovirt.rol P pdcqa189ovirt.rol P pdcqa189ovirt.rol	for logs export.	
SureBackup	Scope	O Export logs for this job:	
Application Groups	Date Range	Choose	
Virtual Labs	Legation	O Export logs for these objects:	
VMware vSphere	Location	Choose	
	Export	 Export all logs for selected components (may result in a very large log package) Managed servers: 	
Microsoft Windows		Server Components Select All	
A		backup-appliance oVirt KVM Clear All	
T Home		backup-appliance-1 oVirt KVM	
Inventory		mvbackupsrv.tech Installer, Mount Server, Iransport, Veeam A	
Backup Infrastructure			
Storage Infrastructure			
Tape Infrastructure			
Files		< Previous Next > Finish Cancel	
History			
*			
4 servers	Connected	to: rhvbackupsrv.tech.local (-9 hours) Build: 12.1.0.2131 Enterprise Plus Edition Evaluation: 298 d	ays remaining

Appendix. Deprecated Functionality

Starting from version 4.0, Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV comes without the web console that was previously used to manage the backup appliance. The functionality of the web console is now integrated into the Veeam Backup & Replication console, which allows you to perform the following tasks:

- Create backup jobs
- Perform VM restore
- Perform disk restore
- Enable SSH on the backup appliance VM
- Edit backup appliance network settings
- Edit the Administrator account
- Configure settings for CPU and RAM usage notifications
- Back up and restore appliance configuration
- Update the backup appliance
- Configure notification settings for automated delivery of backup job results

NOTE

Veeam Backup for OLVM and RHV supports mail servers with SMTP basic authentication only.

You can also use the Veeam Backup & Replication console to track real-time statistics of all running and completed operations and to generate reports with statistics data. For more information, see the Veeam Backup & Replication User Guide, section Reporting.